
 

 

 
Children's 
Services Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Date: Friday, 5th October, 2007 

Time: 10.00 a.m. 

Place: : The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the 
meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Paul James, Members' Services Tel: 01432 
260460 Fax: 01432 260286 

e-mail: pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
 
County of Herefordshire 
District Council 

 
 

 



 
 



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 5TH OCTOBER, 2007 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Children's Services 
Scrutiny Committee 

 
To:                   Councillor 

Councillor 
 

 
SJ Robertson (Chairman) 
 WU Attfield (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillors ME Cooper, P Jones CBE, G Lucas, JE Pemberton, 
RV Stockton, JK Swinburne, AM Toon, WJ Walling 
and JD Woodward 

  
Church Members J.D. Griffin (Roman Catholic) and Revd. I. Terry 

(Church of England) 
  

Parent Governor Members Mr R Stevenson and Mr A Wood 
  
Headteacher Representatives Mrs. D. Strutt (Secondary Schools) 

  
Community Representatives Ms D Scott (The Alliance) 

  

  

 Pages 

  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES     
   
 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 

in place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 

   
5. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT (APA)     
   
 To receive a report at the meeting on the recent Annual Performance 

Assessment. 
 

   
6. PRINCIPLES ON FUTURE PROVISION OF SCHOL PLACES   1 - 8  
   
 To consider the draft principles on future school provision and to provide 

comments to shape the final document.  
 

   
Additional Paper - Principles to Guide the Provision....   
  
Since printing the agenda the attached paper – “Principles to guide the provision 
of education in Herefordshire in the 21st century” has been issued to members. 

 

  



 

7. CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2007/08   9 - 12  
   
 To report the Capital  budget for 2007/08 for the Children & Young 

People’s Directorate and progress in it’s spending. 
 

   
8. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORINGREPORT 2007/08   13 - 14  
   
 To report on the monitoring of the revenue budget for 2007/08 for the 

Children & Young People’s Directorate. 
 

   
Additional paper - Revenue Budget....   
  
Since printing the agenda the attached paper – “Revenue Budget Monitoring 
Report – as at August 2007” has been issued to members. 

 

  
9. PERFORMANCE DIGEST - QUARTER 1 - 2007/2008   15 - 16  
   
 To present the Quarter 1 Performance Digest for Children’s Services (April 

– June 2007) and to highlight key areas arising from the performance for 
the first quarter. 

 

   
The Quarterly Digest referred to in Item 9   
   
10. REVIEW OF BEHAVIOUR AND DISCIPLINE MANAGEMENT IN 

HEREFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS   
17 - 24  

   
 To inform the Committee of the Cabinet Member’s acceptance of the 

recommendations in the Scrutiny review report and to consider the 
resultant action plan. 

 

   
11. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   25 - 30  
   
 To consider the Committee work programme.  
   



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Childrens’ Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises 
corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 

•  Help in developing Council policy 
 

• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 
before and after decisions are taken 

 

• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 
by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 

 

• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 
Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 

• Review performance of the Council 
 

• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 

• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and consider 
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when 
compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services including: 
Learning Disabilities 
Strategic Housing 
Supporting People 
Public Health 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Libraries 
Cultural Services including heritage and tourism 
Leisure Services 
Parks and Countryside 
Community Safety 
Economic Development 
Youth Services 
 
Health 
 
Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area 
Health Improvement 
Services provided by the NHS 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 

 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for 
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-

inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 

Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at 
the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken 
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the 
building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 



CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 5TH OCTOBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  

George Salmon – Head of Commissioning & Improvement – Schools & Services 

Tel: 01432 860802  Email: gsalmon@herefordshire.gov.uk 
PrinciplesofProvisionofSchoolPlacereport0.doc  

PRINCIPLES ON FUTURE PROVISION OF SCHOOL PLACES 

Report By: HEAD OF COMMISSIONING & IMPROVEMENT – 
SCHOOLS & SERVICES 

 

Wards Affected 
 
County-wide 
 

Purpose 
 
1. To consider the draft principles on future school provision and to provide comments to shape 

the final document. 
 

Financial Implications 
 
2. None 
 

Background 
 
3.1 In England generally there are falling rolls in schools. This reflects the demographic pattern 

following the ‘baby boom’ in the late 1940’s and the subsequent fluctuation in numbers of 
children in the country (660,800 births in 1991, and 563,700 births in 2001) and the changing 
social pattern of fewer women having children, and having fewer children later in life (2.95 
children per female in 1964, 1.71 in 2003). 

 
3.2 In Herefordshire this national trend is exacerbated by fewer 20-34 year olds in the population, 

with over 400 more 15-24 year olds leaving the County each year between 2000 and 2003 than 
moved into the County. 

 
3.3 As a result as at summer term 2007 there were 2,291 13-14 year olds in the County but only 

1,702 0-1 year olds. By 2011 it is projected that the number of 0-1 year olds will fall to 1,500. 
This cohort will enter secondary school in 2021, and plans should therefore be made for falling 
numbers for at least the next 15 if not 20 years. 

 
AGE GROUP CHILDREN IN COUNTY CHILDREN ON ROLL 

0-1 1702 0 

1-2 1727 0 

2-3 1797 0 

3-4 1748 420 

4-5 1732 1611 

5-6 1769 1610 

6-7 1944 1769 

7-8 2085 1842 

8-9 2047 1849 

9-10 2067 1844 

10-11 2179 1913 

11-12 2138 1854 

12-13 2287 1936 

13-14 2291 1911 

14-15 2472 2052 

15-16 2419 2057 

AGENDA ITEM 6

1



CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 5TH OCTOBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  

George Salmon – Head of Commissioning & Improvement – Schools & Services 

Tel: 01432 860802  Email: gsalmon@herefordshire.gov.uk 
PrinciplesofProvisionofSchoolPlacereport0.doc  

3.4 Falling rolls create ‘surplus space’ in schools and this suggests that resources are not being 
used to best effect. As it is, the figures in the table below show the position in January 2007 
which identify that there are considerable empty spaces. As the numbers of children 
decreases, this situation will become worse. 

 
 PRIMARY SCHOOLS HIGH SCHOOLS 

 TOTAL 
PUPIL  

NUMBERS 

TOTAL  
SCHOOL  

CAPACITY 

TOTAL 
PUPIL  

NUMBERS 

TOTAL  
SCHOOL  

CAPACITY 

WEOBLEY, KINGTON, WIGMORE 1557 1876 1337 1460 

LEOMINSTER, BROMYARD 1669 2086 1037 1300 

KINGSTONE, PETERCHURCH 1102 1316 1041 995 

HEREFORD CITY 5310 6293 4672 4900 

LEDBURY & ROSS 2740 3255 2083 2100 

TOTAL 12,378 14,826 10,457 10,755 

 
3.5 There is additional housing proposed in the Unitary Development Plan up to 2011. The 

Regional Spatial Strategy also suggests that the rate of house building may increase between 
2001 and 2026. However, it is to be noted that 4,372 houses were completed in the County 
between 1999 and 2005. During this time the number of primary school pupils dropped by 
1,253 and the number of students in high schools dropped by 986. Additional housing does not 
necessarily lead to an increased number of children in maintained schools. 

 
3.6 Falling rolls has become a critical strategic issue for the Authority, Herefordshire will receive 

less money in the Dedicated Schools Grant from Central Government as pupil numbers drop, 
and schools will consequently receive lower allocations. 

 
Smaller schools budgets will lead to a necessary subsequent reduction in staffing levels in 
schools. Fewer staff threaten the quality of teaching and learning and the breadth of the 
curriculum on offer. It is anticipated that the numbers of staff in Primary Schools and 
Secondary Schools over the next 3 years will have to reduce by 80 fulltime equivalent posts in 
each sector. 

 
As budgets reduce a greater percentage will be spent on fixed costs e.g. rates, heating, lighting 
and buildings maintenance, as the overhead costs in each school (rates, heating and lighting, 
cleaning, caretaking, Headteachers and secretaries) tend to be fixed. 

 
3.7 At the same time the expectations on schools are increasing; higher standards; personalised 

learning; broader curriculum; extended school services, and an increased responsibility for the 
wider children’s agenda. 

 
Falling rolls will not have a uniform impact. The various areas of the County will be affected to 
different degrees, although the majority of schools are likely to suffer from greater fluctuation 
from year to year, making planning more difficult. 

 
In this context Cabinet on 16th March 2006 (see Appendix 1) approved the review of the 
provision of schools in a series of area reviews. In 2006 Area Reviews were commenced in 
Kington, Weobley and Wigmore, Kingstone and Peterchurch, and Bromyard and Leominster. 
Consultation documents were issued. 

 
It is now urgent to complete the review process, and to do this it has been decided to issue a 
principles paper for consultation with schools. Once these have been agreed and in light of 
demographic projections, the Local Authority will put forward proposals in January 2008. The 
principles paper attempts to set out the basis on which school provision should be shaped in 

2



CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 5TH OCTOBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  

George Salmon – Head of Commissioning & Improvement – Schools & Services 

Tel: 01432 860802  Email: gsalmon@herefordshire.gov.uk 
PrinciplesofProvisionofSchoolPlacereport0.doc  

the first half of the 21st Century. It covers the role of the school in both the narrower education 
field, its wider role in the community and in supporting the ECM agenda. 
 
The timetable for this is: 
 
August 1st –   
September 30th -   Consultation with Schools 
October 6th –   Children’s Services Scrutiny 
October 9th –   HASH – Discussion with Secondary Headteachers 
October 17th –   Primary Headteachers 
November 22nd/29th –  Cabinet – consideration for Final Principles Paper 
January 2008 –   Draft Proposals for changing provision 
January – February -  Consultation on the draft proposals 
March 2008 -   Cabinet to consider final change 
April 2008 onwards -  Implementation of statutory notices etc 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Committee consider principles set out in the document, and 
comment on them accordingly 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
• Cabinet 16th March 2006 

3



4



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
George Salmon, Head of Policy and Resources on 01432 260802 

REVIEWOFTHEPROVISIONOFSCHOOLPLACES0.doc 

REVIEW OF THE PROVISION OF SCHOOL PLACES 

REPORT BY DIRECTOR OF HEALTH, HOUSING AND SOCIAL CARE 

CABINET  16TH MARCH, 2006 

Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To approve a county-wide review of school provision in primary, secondary and post-16 
phases of education. 

Key Decision 

This is not a Key Decision.

Recommendation

THAT the review be agreed in line with the phased programme set out in the report. 

Reasons 

• Falling Rolls in schools are significant, are projected to continue until 2016, and are 
already causing difficulties for schools to maintain the quality of teaching and learning 
and to consider the additional initiatives expected of them. 

• The existing review policies within the School Organisation Plan do not provide an 
adequate basis to consider the full impact of the problem. 

Considerations 

1. Numbers in primary schools are projected to fall from a peak of 14,342 in 1999 to 
below 12,000 in 2016. There could be come recovery in the early 2020s but 
population projections suggest that numbers will recover by less than 5%.  

2. Fewer children in schools will lead to reduced allocations from Central Government, 
and lead to reduction in teacher numbers. It will be important to ensure that the 
resources that are available are used to best effect. Indeed it is estimated that over 
40% of the budget of a small school is spent on fixed costs [premises, head, 
secretary, caretaker] but only 13% of a large school. 

3. This trend is highlighted by the age profile of children resident in the County. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

635



AGE GROUP  CHILDREN IN COUNTY CHILDREN ON ROLL 

0-1   1695    0 
1-2   1770    0 
2-3   1723    0 
3-4   1707    379 
4-5   1722    1486 
5-6   1917    1720 
6-7   2038    1816 
7-8   2039    1823 
8-9   2044    1800 
9-10   2146    1872 
10-11   2023    1851 
11-12   2000    1914 
12-13   2119    1896 
13-14   2201    2045 
14-15   2165    2061 

15-16   2137    2001 

4. The School Organisation Plan does have policies setting out the criteria when 
schools should be reviewed. On the basis of these policies the future of three small 
schools would be reviewed and provision in the Leominster, Ross-on-Wye and 
Hereford areas. Reviews confined to these schools would not address the issues 
evident in all areas of the county. 

5. Falling Rolls create ‘surplus space’ and this suggests that resources are not being 
used to best effect. 

Primary Schools High Schools 

 Total Pupil 
Numbers 

Total 
School 

Capacity 

Total Pupil 
Numbers 

Total 
School 

Capacity 
Weobley, Kington, 
Wigmore 

1588 1876 1364 1460 

Leominster, Bromyard  1661 2086 1081 1300 
Kingstone, Peterchurch 1071 1316 1018 995 
Hereford City 5296 6293 4818 4900 
Ledbury & Ross 2759 3255 2176 2100 

Total 12,375 14,826 10,457 10,755 

6. The LSC is responsible for planning post 16 provision. They support the review given 

• It would be very difficult to review high school provision to 16 without taking 
account of sixth form provision, especially within the context of a developing 14-
19 phase of learning and the need for curriculum progression routes that are 
increasingly indifferent to the traditional break at 16. 

• A changing context as the result of:  

o Criticism voiced during the Area Wide Inspection in January 2005 
which was repeated in the recent Joint Area Review that some sixth 
form curricula remain insufficiently broad and also do not cater for 
learners at levels 1 and 2. 

646



o Linked to the previous point, the DfES 14-19 Implementation Plan 
which will make great demands on schools with regards to the phased 
introduction of 14 new Vocational Diplomas. 

o The development of the New Measures of Success for Value Added 
at “A” level which will provide a new context for considering sixth form 
performance. 

• The demographic decline of young people in the county is inescapable even 
though its full effects will take some years to work through to sixth forms. 

7. It is acknowledged that no parts of the County operate entirely separately, but by 
considering each part of the County more thought can be given to the possibilities of 
cooperation between schools. It is suggested that the countywide role played by St. 
Mary’s R C High School and Bishop of Hereford Bluecoat High School be part of the 
Hereford City process. 

8. It is proposed that in each area, a discussion document be produced for consultation 
with schools, parents and diocesan bodies LSC and others. This would lead to 
recommendations from the local authority for further discussion. It would only be at 
the end of that stage that any statutory notice if required would be issued. 

9. In this review the following issues will be addressed.

10. The SOC supported the proposal for a review, with one suggestion being made that 
primary schools should be reviewed on an area basis, but there should be a 
separate countywide review of high school provision. Consideration is being given to 
this, recognizing the need to balance the desire to explore cooperation between 
primary and high schools, and also to assess the possibilities or cooperation 
between high schools.  In addition, consideration is being given to sixth form review 
and the links with the Area Wide Inspection of 14-19 provision and the improvement 
plan agreed by DfES. 

11. It is to be noted that schools are funded by a direct grant from Central Government. 
In the main this grant will vary in direct proportion to pupil numbers, and not reflect 
the number of schools within the County.

Alternative Options 

There are no alternative options 

Risk Management 

The review does create risks in introducing uncertainty and anxiety for school and parents. 
Parents may assume certain outcomes which are deleterious to some individual schools. 
The recruitment of staff to either small schools or from outside the county may be affected. 
Although there are these risks they can be mitigated by maintaining the review timescale 
and having clear communication strategy throughout the exercise to reduce uncertainty. 

The risks associated with not proceeding with the review are greater.   

It should also be noted that the review will require much staff time. The timetable proposed, 
although demanding should be met within existing resources. However, if there are other 
demands on staff the programme may have to stop or additional resource found. 

657



Consultees 

School Organisation Committee 
Learning & Skills Council  

Background Papers 

School Organisation Plan 
School Organisation Committee Report date 9.02.06 
Letter from LSC to High Schools with Sixth Forms 

668



 

 1 

PRINCIPLES TO GUIDE THE PROVISION OF EDUCATION IN 
HEREFORDSHIRE IN THE 21st CENTURY 

 
 
Introduction 
 
Herefordshire Council is committed to working in partnership with schools, settings, 
colleges and their stakeholders together with other partners to meet the wider Every 
Child Matters agenda and the requirements of the Children’s Act. We act to ensure that 
the education system is fit for purpose to sustain improvement in the years ahead, and is 
able to meet the changes and challenges to come. 
 
We affirm this Statement of Principles to guide our work, set our standards, underpin our 
values and inform the future organisation of schools to enable us with partners to give 
the best opportunities and the best outcomes for all learners.  Our aims for all our 
children and young people are:  
 

• that they all can have the best start and maximise progress in their education; 

• that through their learning and entitlement they can develop all their abilities 
and talents to achieve the highest standards  

• that through high quality provision and support they can realise the highest 
aspiration and expectations for their benefit and that of the whole community 

• that such a sound foundation will prepare them for a positive and fulfilling adult 
life as citizens living in a global context. 

 
To deliver this vision, resources will have to be used to maximum effect. The provision of 
school places and school organisation are major determinants in how resources are 
allocated and expended. The aim is to see agreement on the principles on which we 
want to base educational provision, and then in the review of school provision proposals 
which will deliver the vision. Decisions taken now will shape provision over the next 20-
30 years.  
 
In developing the Statement of Principles we have taken account of the vision, ambitions 
and local priorities set out in the  
 

• Herefordshire Partnership Plan,  

• The Children and Young People’s Plan,  

• The Education Asset Management Plan,  

• The 14-19 Learning Entitlement for Young People. 
 
There is a common cause to build an equal and inclusive society; realise the potential of 
individuals and communities, seek continual improvement and provide excellent 
education, training and learning opportunities in Herefordshire for all ages.  
 



 

 2 

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 
 
1. The Best for All of Herefordshire’s Children and Young People 
 
We place the child/young person, his/her needs and the development of his/her 
potential, at the centre of all we do.  We base our strategies and decisions on what will 
benefit the education and welfare of all of Herefordshire’s children and young people. 
  
In line with the holistic approach under Every Child Matters, we believe that, with 
consistent nurture, support and encouragement from their schools, peers, family and 
community, our children/young people can succeed in their learning and grow into 
mature, healthy, well-rounded individuals who contribute positively to society. 
 
We seek the greater involvement of children and young people, individually and 
collectively, in the development of their learning and self-esteem by taking account of 
learner voice, opinions and assessments in a variety of forms.  We value their 
contribution to developing provision and appropriate educational pathways.   
 
Practical Steps 
 

• Schools will be encouraged to develop extended services for children and families, 

• The role of schools in providing co-located bases for multi-professional teams 
delivering services across the 5 outcomes will be considered in the development of 
integrated services, 

• The Shadow Partnership Board and Youth Council will be consulted as part of the 
current school review, 

• The statutory requirement to review any school placed in a negative Ofsted 
Category will be pursued more robustly. 

 
 
2. Equity: 
 
We believe that all children and young people should be equally valued and should have 
a common entitlement in their school, settings and in the community educational 
partnerships.  We believe that educational strength, expertise and experience should be 
shared for the benefit of all, and the enterprise and innovative capacity of individual 
schools must contribute to the collective resources in the county.   
 
In an era of diversity, specialism and declining numbers, parental preference can best be 
addressed within a county-wide strategic framework, which ensures a high quality of 
basic entitlement for all, supplemented by enrichment opportunities available through 
collaborative working between schools and other providers.  
 
Practical Steps 
 
In order to achieve the aims of equity and excellence for all in the context of limited 
financial resources and falling rolls,  
 

• We acknowledge the need to refine the funding mechanisms for schools to 
establish greater parity and opportunities in the overall provision. 



 

 3 

• We will encourage and facilitate networking and opportunities for collaboration 

• Our schools must be inclusive with appropriate access to the curriculum for all 

• Schools need to be supported in developing skills to meet the full range of pupil 
needs, carefully monitoring outcomes and targeting resources to greatest effect. 



 

 4 

 
3. Partnership: 
 
Together with other agencies, we aim to positively embrace the Children Act 2004 in 
supporting and strengthening our beliefs and strategies. We believe in open and 
constructive partnership working with and between schools, key agencies and 
parents/carers to ensure we  deliver a first class education service that meets the needs 
of each pupil. Indeed in a period of falling rolls, partnership working between schools is 
likely to be the only way in which some specific needs of individual learner can be met.  
 
Practical Steps 
 
To achieve better outcomes for our children and young people, we will work together 
with partners to create new structures or arrangements in the development of a flexible 
learning organisation that can successfully face new challenges as they emerge. At 
present, this includes a review of the role of the school in delivering the Foundation 
Stage to children under 5, and the work within the 14-19 Strategy to develop 
individualised/personalised curriculum for all pupils. 
 
 
4. Diversity: 
 
We recognise the benefits of furthering diversity in countywide provision in pursuit of 
equity, inclusion, improvement and innovation. 
 
Practical Steps 
 
The local authority will consider action which will 
 

• select from the range of national initiatives (and where appropriate adapting them 
to local circumstances), to support the transformation of primary and secondary 
schools to sustain a first class service. 

• endorse and promote new arrangements in school organisation such as co-
locations and amalgamations of infant and junior or primary and secondary 
schools, mergers and federations where these are the most appropriate means 
of securing improved standards and services in the locality. 

• encourage community focused schools working in clusters or networks to provide 
local access to high quality education for children of all ages and adults and 
access to other services such as Health where that is appropriate.  

• achieve co-located provision with other agencies on schools sites to further the 
effective delivery of the ECM agenda through the aligned development of 
children’s centres and extended services, 

• consider different legal status for schools, where this is judged to bring significant 
benefit to children and young people. 

 



 

 5 

 
 
5. Leadership: 
 
Strong leadership from the local authority, headteachers and schools governing bodies 
is essential to meet the evolving agenda and to manage the changes. We recognise the 
strength of leaders in Herefordshire and will continue to support and challenge them to 
ensure a high quality experience of learners through a period of change. 
 
Practical Steps 
 
We will work in partnership with headteachers and governors to create:  
 

• a unity amongst leading professionals built upon common values and 
principles;  

• a passion for excellence;  

• a commitment to working collaboratively with many partners for the benefit of 
Herefordshire learners;  

• a commitment to each other to support, to challenge and to lead  

• a willingness to consider the development of new ways to disseminate best 
practice and generate new approaches to the improvement of the service.  

• with the cooperation of Governing Bodies, internal arrangements which allow 
headteachers at least 50% non-teaching time. 

• the opportunities to consider different models of school leadership through, 
for example, federated schools. 

 
 
6. Additional Needs: 
   
We believe in equal opportunities and in positive, active intervention for children with 
additional needs and those who are vulnerable.  
 
Practical Steps 
 
We aim to ensure that: 
 

• the needs of these children and young people are identified at an early stage so 
that the school and, where necessary, specialist staff can intervene speedily and 
appropriately with greater emphasis on in-school provision; 

• a continuum of provision is developed which has greater flexibility to ensure 
access to the best outcomes for an individual as no single school or setting can 
meet all needs at all times; 

• there is appropriate transition or transfer arrangements for pupils between school 
and specialist settings, which include short-term intervention or part time 
placements, and flexibility between sectors; 

• the provision of a broad, personalised curriculum presented in an innovative, 
vibrant, exciting and challenging way. This will offer, particularly at KS3 and KS4, 
a diverse menu of alternative curriculum pathways to reduce the incidence of 
exclusion;  



 

 6 

• those pupils who have become disaffected or have been excluded must be 
encouraged and supported to re-engage in their education within their own 
school or at another local school as quickly as possible so that they have the 
maximum chance of success; 

• Herefordshire’s specialist provision is developed so that only a few cases with 
the most complex low incidence need will have to go outside our boundaries. 



 

 7 

 
7. Resources: 
 
We recognise that a high quality of teaching and learning exists in Herefordshire 
schools. However, we also acknowledge the need for schools to be fully fit for purpose 
for the twenty-first century challenges, and to be appropriately resourced in terms of 
finance, staffing, materials, equipment and accommodation. 
 
Practical Steps 
 
 In order to achieve this   
 

• the LMS Scheme will be reviewed to reduce the resources allocated under non-
pupil factors e.g. floor area 

• school organisation will be examined to reduce the percentage of budget spent 
on non-teaching costs 

• e-learning opportunities will be advanced through ICT systems and 
infrastructures.   

• capital investment will be made, as resources allow, to ensure that buildings and 
facilities support the full participation of children and adults in curricular and 
extra-curricular activities.  

• resources will be focused on those areas which have greatest impact on teaching 
and learning, through both changes in school organisation and in the LMS 
Scheme, 

• schools will be supported in developing  and sustaining partnerships to improve 
local access to specialist staff, resources and services which can be better 
provided collaboratively than individually. 

• training programmes will be provided to ensure that all staff have access to high 
quality training and development to maintain and improve standards and to 
demonstrate and disseminate best practice.  



 

 8 

 
8. A Community of Schools: 
 
We are committed to maintaining a community of schools in Herefordshire that primarily 
serve their local area but may also allow for parental preference, accessing the 
curriculum and extended services on a strategic countywide basis. In maintaining this 
commitment to quality and excellence in a time of falling rolls and increasing demands, 
we recognise that we cannot compromise on quality in times of scarcity.   
 
Practical Steps 
 

• We will endeavour to restrict pupil travel time to schools so that no child or 
young person, unless by choice, has to travel more than 45 minutes to school 

• We will continue to apply the Best Value Performance Indicator which identifies 
those schools with more than 25% surplus spaces (and at least 30 places). This 
will be used to inform the school review process  

 



 

 9 

NEXT STEPS AND SOME EARLY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Comments are sought on these principles. Once agreed, by the Council the ability of 
current provision to deliver the vision at a time of falling rolls will be assessed. The 
traditional model that schools educate children between the ages of 5 – 16, with some to 
18 between 9.00 and 3.30 on 190 days in a year, following a standard curriculum is 
rapidly changing to reflect the national transformational agenda. At this stage it is 
envisaged that schools in the future will offer more flexible services with schools offering 
places or provision for children and young people of all ages as well as adults in the 
local community. 
 
Possible ways forward include 
 
1. more diverse provision in terms of status of school (aided, trust, academy, 

federated) and age-range. This will be supported where it can be reasonably 
demonstrated that standards of teaching and learning will improve, or that 
resources can be used more effectively; 

 
2. in the primary sector all schools will be expected to have at least 3.5 F.T.E. 

teachers, including a headteacher with no more than 0.5 teaching workload. 
(This would require all schools to have at least 55-60 pupils on roll); 

 
3. in the secondary sector all schools must be able to demonstrate that they are 

able to offer either independently or working in partnership with another school, 
the learning entitlement for academic and vocational subjects 

 
4. no Sixth Forms should be created with fewer than 120 students; 
 
5. any school where the per pupil funding for children without SEN exceeds the 

DfCFS unit DSG funding (currently £3,400) will be subject to more detailed 
review; 

 
6. school transport will be organised where practical, and where geography allows, 

to reduce the journey time for students to less than 45 minutes; 
 
7. all accommodation used for the core teaching and learning will be in permanent 

accommodation, that meets the current standards expressed in DfCFS Building 
Bulletins. Future capital investment programmes of the Council should be 
formulated to make good those areas which are below standards; 

 
8. parental choice will be supported through ensuring that there is diversity of 

provision, and that schools are provided in strategic locations throughout the 
County, (and not necessarily through expanding schools which only the more 
mobile parents can access). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 10

Again comments are sought on these ideas. As part of the process to develop proposals  
for individual schools, the following information is being collected on the circumstances  
of each school; 
 

• quality of education as assessed by Ofsted; 

• funding level in terms of per pupil amount ; 

• number of children under the age of 5 living in catchment area as at 
August 31st 2007 ; 

• projection of future numbers of children on roll; 

• current and future surplus space; 

• distance to alternative schools; 

• quality of accommodation; 

• number of temporary classrooms; 

• number of children on excessive journeys; 

• volume of services offered to community under extended schools; 

• potential for all through school or alternative organisation. 
 
This will be used alongside other information which maybe brought to our attention to 
shape proposals that will emerge in the next stage. 



       CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 5TH OCTOBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Malcolm Green – Finance Manager 

Tel: 01432 260 818 Email: malcolm.green@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 

 
CapitalBudgetMonitoringReport200780.doc  

 CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2007/08 

Report By: FINANCE MANAGER 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To report the capital budget for 2007/08 for the Children & Young People’s Directorate 
and progress in it’s spending. 

Financial Implications 

2. As set out in the report 

Background 

3. The Capital Programme Budget Monitoring Summary reported to Cabinet on the 20th 
September is set out in the table below. Full details of all the expenditure on all Children 
& Young People’s projects are listed in the Appendix. 

 £ ‘000 
Capital Budget Reported as at 31 July 2007 11,420 
Capital Budget Decreases  
Minster College Replacement  - re-profiling (2,949) 
Capital Budget Increases  
Sutton Primary Replacement  – slippage from 06/07 1,208 
Hereford City North Children Centre - new 975 
Golden Valley Children’s Centre – new 490 
Other Budget Revisions (each less than £250,000) 839 
Revised Capital Budget 2007/08 11,983 

 

This revised figure of just under £12m is fully resourced from a combination of DCSF 
grant, borrowing approvals support by Council fund, capital receipts and S106 monies. 

4. The Minster College replacement has a tender list waiting for invitation, details of the 
scheme are being considered, the expected spend in this year has been reduced with 
spend expected to continue into 2009/10. This scheme is 100% grant funded by the 
DCSF and there are no financial implications of this change. 

5. The Sutton Primary school replacement budget has increased following slippage from 
2006/07 carried forward into 2007/08 reflecting the revised cash flow submitted by the 
successful contractor. Again there has been no change to the gross expenditure. 
Construction works are well advanced and no unforeseen circumstances have arisen. 

6. Hereford City and Golden Valley Children’s Centre budgets are funded by capital grant 
and must be used to provide a total of five Children’s Centres before 31st March 2008. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

9



       CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 5TH OCTOBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Malcolm Green – Finance Manager 

Tel: 01432 260 818 Email: malcolm.green@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 

 
CapitalBudgetMonitoringReport200780.doc  

Cabinet approval to the use of Widemarsh Workshops on 20th September will allow this 
scheme to proceed. The expenditure on the 2 Children’s Centres is within the DCSF 
capital grant. 

7. Not included above are devolved formula capital grants of £2,898,000, which have been 
allocated to individual schools on a formula basis. The monitoring of this capital 
expenditure will fall within future rounds of capital monitoring. 

8. The other budget revisions total £839,000 and are made up of budget changes as 
follows: 

eLearning credits  
    

£191,720 Standards fund grant delegated 
to schools 

Hollybush Children’s Centre
    

£100,000 Roofing repairs at the centre and 
new central heating 

LPSA2 Health  
    

£114,500 Previously not reported through 
Children & Young People’s 
capital programme 

John Masefield Kitchen 
refurbishment 

£150,000 Funded from grant – omitted 
from original 

Minor budget revisions 
    

£281,780 Small adjustments for 28 other 
schemes  

 

9. The Academy Project for Wyebridge Sports College is not listed as the scheme is still in 
a feasibility stage. It will be part of the Council’s Capital Programme if approval is given. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the report be noted 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• Cabinet Integrated Performance Report September 2007 

10



Children's Services Scrutiny Committee

Capital Monitoring 2007/08

5th October 2007

Appendix 1

Code Scheme Original Budget Revised Forecast
Spend per Cedar 

as at 20/09/07

2007/08 31/07/07

CC £ £ £

M0007 John Masefield - kitchen refurb                 150,000                 196,129                   36,068 

M0009 Ledbury Primary - Extension                        759 3,058

M0011 Site Acquisition - Cradley 63,000                   55,000 106

M0016 Trinity PS - S106 46,879                   46,879 

M0018 John Kyrle High 38,291

M0018 John Kyrle High  - S106 11,000

M0018 John Kyrle High  - Kitchen refurb 150,000                 146,178 63,839

M0019 Aylestone High  - Kitchen refurb 150,000                 166,044 102,255

M0020 Kingstone High - Sports Hall                   32,000 180

M0023 Walford Primary                        265 265

M0025 Temporary Classrooms 100,000                 100,000 979

M0030 Queen Elizabeth 688

M0030 Queen Elizabeth - refurbishment S106 16,000                   16,000 

M0033 Fairfield High School                        102 789

M0033 Fairfield High School -686

M0039 Wigmore (S106) 10,000                 

M0039 Wigmore 58                        

M0043 Leominster Infants (S106) 80,000                                   80,000 2,857                   

M0044 Kingstone & Thruuxton Primary - S106 24,000                                   24,000 

M0048 Michaelchurch Escley Primary 2,362                   

M0054 Weobley High 2,210                   

M0054 Weobley High  -  Sports Hall 200,000                 165,000 70,494

M0062 Whitecross High Var 5,287

M0062 Whitecross High Var 2,102

M0062 Whitecross High - upgrade playing field                   25,000 

M0062 Whitecross High Var 13,802

M0062 Whitecross High Var 3,326

M0065 Kington Primary - Rebuilding 12,343                   62,343 46,310

M0065 Kington Childrens Centre 1,225

M0066 Withington (S106)                   24,511 

M0071 Minster School - Replacement 3,049,409                            100,000 

M0076 E Learning Credits                 191,720 

M0080 Sutton Primary replac'T School 102,470               

M0080 Sutton Primary replac'T School 936,000                            2,144,376 8,986                   

M0080 Sutton Primary replac'T School 417,023               

M0080 Sutton Primary replac'T School Rural Arts 65                        

M0082 Feasibility Work 50,000                                   50,000 22,602                 

M0082 Feasibility Work Rebuilding 1,812                   

M0083 Little Dewchurch Primary 1,359                   

M0083 Little Dewchurch Primary - Upgrade Playing Field 80,000                                   30,000 20,701                 

M0087 Hope Sure Start 12,505                 

M0087 Hope Sure Start - New Centre 1,200                   12,505 

M0088 Hunderton Amalagamation 578,026 

M0088 Riverside Junior & Infants Amalgamation 4,620,000                         4,539,540 253,118               

11



Children's Services Scrutiny Committee

Capital Monitoring 2007/08

5th October 2007

Appendix 1

Code Scheme Original Budget Revised Forecast
Spend per Cedar 

as at 20/09/07

2007/08 31/07/07

CC £ £ £

M0088 Hunderton Amalagamation 192,060               

M0095 Academy-Wyebridge 2,186                   

M0095 Academy-Wyebridge Replacement School 249 

M0370 Improving Management Information                   25,000 326                      

M0371 ICT Mobile Technology for Social Workers                   29,739 2,032                   

M1033 Intergrated Childrens system                   32,193                   21,462 

M0490 School Building Improvements                   84,022 7,424                   

M0499 Nds Condition Property  -  General 900,000                 900,000 98,365

M0499 Nds Condition Property External Elevations 284,097

M0499 Nds Condition Property Internal Repairs 5,390

M0499 Nds Condition Property Roof & Rainwater Installations 61,954

M0499 Nds Condition Property Drainage plumbing & waste 479

M0499 Nds Condition Property External work hard surface 113

M0499 Nds Condition Property Electrical Services 57,517

M0499 Nds Condition Property Mechanical Services 4,832

M0499 Nds Condition Property Fore Precautions 8,660

M0500 Individual Pupil Needs  10,821

M0500 Individual Pupil Needs  260,000                 263,000 41,420

M0500 Individual Pupil Needs  Locally Managed 16,574

M2020 Standard Fund Capital 2,119

10,942,024 9,531,574 2,611,151 

M0406 Mobile Family Centre

M0410 Mini Surestart 258 

M0455 Hunderton/Hollybush Childrens Centre 100,000 610 

M0089 Ross Childrens Centre 104,500 168,022 3,397 

M0089 Ross Childrens Centre Locally Managed 4,479 

M0090 Ledbury Childrens Centre 436,500 447,136 146,439 

M0091 Hereford City North (Widemarsh Workhop) 975,000 6,272 

M0092 Golden Valley (Peterchurch&Kingstone) 490,883 5,834 

M0092 Golden Valley Childrens Centre Temporary Classrooms 23,750 

M0057 Cradley 10,000 

M0008 Bosbury 10,000 

541,000 2,201,041 191,038 

M0200 LPSA2 - Health                 114,500 

M0201 LPSA2 - GCSE 9,304 

M0203 LPSA2 - NEET 46,000 72,491 8,460 

M0202 LPSA2 - school attendance 41,300 54,297 12,507 

87,300                 250,592               20,967                 

Zcodes Devolved Formula Capital 2,897,893            

12



        CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 5TH OCTOBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Malcolm Green – Finance Manager 

Tel: 01432 260 818 Email: Malcolm.green@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
RevenueBudgetMonitoringReport2007080.doc  

 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2007/08 

Report By: FINANCE MANAGER 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To report on the monitoring of the revenue budget for 2007/08 for the Children & Young 
People’s Directorate 

Financial Implications 

2. As set out in the report 

Background 

3. The Integrated Performance Report to Cabinet on 20th September, based on expenditure 
to 31st July 2007, anticipated that the Children’s revenue budget would be overspent by 
£774,000. This report has been updated to include expenditure up to the 31st August and 
projects a similar overspend of £783,000 before any claims on the corporate social care 
contingency. Potential savings from the Spend to Save programme from all Directorates 
are being reported corporately. 

4. The Safeguarding and Assessment budgets are projected to overspend by  £878,000 in 
total largely due to the full year effect of the increase in the number of external agency 
placements (£529,000) and increased fostering placements (£313,000). External agency 
placements have risen from 24 in April 2006 to 37 in July 2007 however there has been 
a small reduction to 35 at the end of August. Fostering placements have risen from 102 
in April 2007 to 105 in June before reducing to 103 at the end of August.  No budget 
increase was received to cover the rising number of placements and there is a statutory 
responsibility on the Council to meet the needs of individual children. As each new 
placement typically costs in excess of £150,000 pa, unless placements can be reduced 
there will be a continuing cost pressure in 2008/09. It is difficult to restrict expenditure 
within budget and meet statutory responsibilities. 

5. Redundancy commitments will not be known utill February/March 2008 when schools 
consider their detailed budget plans however the budget was overspent by £285,000 last 
year and there are the same continuing pressures arising from falling pupil rolls in 
schools and an overspend of a similar order is to be expected in 2007/08. 

6. School Transport route reviews continue to deliver welcome savings and savings of 
£166,000 are projected. One off savings of £166,000 in School Improvement arising from 
a one-off windfall from the transfer from academic year funding through standards fund 
to the LAA which is on a financial year also provide a welcome contribution. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

13



        CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 5TH OCTOBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Malcolm Green – Finance Manager 

Tel: 01432 260 818 Email: Malcolm.green@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
RevenueBudgetMonitoringReport2007080.doc  

7. Dedicated Schools Grant is expected to under spend in total by £211,000 which 
comprises of an additional £416,000 extra grant from higher than budgeted pupil 
numbers however this is offset by a projected overspend of £441,000 on Nursery 
Education Funding to Private, Voluntary and Independent providers arising from an 
additional week’s payment in this financial year (+2.7%) and a temporary rise in numbers 
(+3.5%). This is offset by a possible under spend in the out county placements budgets 
of £328,000 although one additional placement could reduce this under spend. Schools 
Forum will be considering on 10th October whether an additional distribution to schools of 
£139,000 can be made in this financial year. Dedicated Schools grant is ring fenced to 
be spent on schools and specific services to schools and any under or over spend must 
be carried forward. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the report be noted 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• Revenue Budget Monitoring Report August 2007 - attached 

14



C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
’S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 
 5

T
H
 O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 2
0
0
7
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1
 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
e
p

o
rt

 –
 a

s
 a

t 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
0
7
 

 
 

2
0

0
7
/0

8
 

B
U

D
G

E
T

 
£

’0
0
0

 

2
0

0
7

/0
8
 

A
C

T
U

A
L

  
£
’0

0
0
 

2
0
0

7
/0

8
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
IO

N

£
’0

0
0

 

2
0

0
7
/0

8
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
 

£
’0

0
0

 

N
O

T
E

S
  

A
. 

D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t 
(D

S
G

) 
 

 
 

 

G
ra

n
t 

In
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 D
fE

S
 

-8
2

,1
1

9
 

-3
6

,5
3

8
 

-8
2
,5

3
5

 
4
1

6
 

D
S

G
 i
n
c
o

m
e

 m
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o
ls

 
3
5

,9
5

3
 

3
5

,8
6

9
 

3
5
,9

5
3

 
0

 
 

H
ig

h
 S

c
h

o
o
ls

 
3
6

,7
6

6
 

3
6

,7
5

2
 

3
6
,7

6
6

 
0

 
 

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

3
,1

1
2

 
3

,1
1

2
 

3
,1

1
2

 
0

 
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
R

e
la

te
d

 E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

 
4
0

4
 

4
1
 

3
9
6

 
8

 
  

L
e
s
s
 L

S
C

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 
-2

,6
1

3
 

-1
,1

0
7
 

-2
,6

1
3

 
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 

s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 D

S
G

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 B

a
n

d
e

d
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 

8
5

0
  

5
2

2
 

9
7
0

 
(1

2
0

) 
H

ig
h

e
r 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

a
llo

c
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

t 
B

a
n

d
in

g
 

P
a

n
e
l 

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
/I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

1
,5

1
7

 
6

2
6
 

1
,5

1
5

 
2

 
 

F
e
e

s
 t

o
 I

n
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

S
E

N
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 
1

,5
2

7
 

-1
0

0
 

1
,1

9
9

 
3
2

8
 

F
e

w
e

r 
c
h
ild

re
n

 t
h
a

n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 
le

a
v
e

rs
 a

n
d

 d
e

la
y
e

d
 n

e
w

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 
P

u
p

il 
R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
U

n
it
s
 

8
5

2
 

8
5

9
 

8
5
9

 
(7

) 
 

N
u

rs
e

ry
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 

2
4
0

7
 

1
1

1
5
 

2
,8

4
8

 
(4

4
1

) 
E

x
tr

a
 w

e
e

k
 i
n

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 

in
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 
O

th
e

r 
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 

5
0

0
 

1
8

5
 

5
0
0

 
0

 
 

M
is

c
e

lla
n

e
o

u
s
 

8
4

4
 

4
3

8
 

8
1
9

 
2

5
 

 
M

u
s
ic

 
0

 
-7

6
 

0
 

0
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 f
u

n
d

 c
/f

w
d

 
4

4
 

-2
5

6
 

4
4

 
0

 
C

/f
w

d
 f

ro
m

 0
7

/0
8
 

D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

  
  

  
G

ra
n

t 
T

o
ta

l 
 

4
4

 
4

1
,4

4
2
 

-1
6
7

 
2
1

1
 

S
c

h
o

o
ls

 F
o

ru
m

 w
il

l 
c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

a
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 o

f 
£

1
3

9
,0

0
0

 



C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
’S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 
 5

T
H
 O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 2
0
0
7
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1
 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
e
p

o
rt

 –
 a

s
 a

t 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
0
7
 

 
 

2
0

0
7
/0

8
 

B
U

D
G

E
T

 
£

’0
0
0

 

2
0

0
7

/0
8
 

A
C

T
U

A
L

  
£
’0

0
0
 

2
0
0

7
/0

8
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
IO

N

£
’0

0
0

 

2
0

0
7
/0

8
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
 

£
’0

0
0

 

N
O

T
E

S
  

B
. 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

 
 

 
 

 

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 P

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 
1

,7
4

9
 

9
1

7
 

2
,2

7
8

 
(5

2
9

) 
F

u
ll 

y
e

a
r 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

1
1

 n
e
w

 u
n

fu
n

d
e

d
 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 s
ta

rt
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0

6
/0

7
 

F
o
s
te

ri
n

g
 

2
,2

3
1

 
1

,0
9

7
 

2
,5

4
4

 
(3

1
3

) 
E

x
tr

a
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 
3

,6
3

1
 

1
,5

0
0
 

3
,6

7
9

 
(4

8
) 

 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

&
 F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 
1

,8
4

1
 

6
9

8
 

1
,8

2
9

 
1

2
  

 

C
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 

1
,0

6
7

 
8

2
1
 

1
,1

9
9

 
(1

3
2

) 
In

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 d
ir
e

c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
J
A

M
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
. 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
5
9

9
 

3
0

7
 

7
3
1

 
(1

3
2

) 
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
9
9

7
 

1
9

1
 

8
3
1

 
1
6

6
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 f

u
n

d
 w

in
d

fa
ll 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
5

,2
0

7
 

1
,5

5
6
 

5
,0

4
1

 
1
6

6
 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 r
o

u
te

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
 

A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

8
5

9
 

3
6

1
 

7
2
9

 
1
3

0
 

 
S

e
v
e

ra
n

c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d

 f
o

rm
e

r 
s
ta

ff
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s
  

4
4

6
 

-1
6

0
 

6
4
6

 
(2

0
0

) 
C

o
n
ti
n

u
e

d
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

fa
lli

n
g
 r

o
lls

 
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 

-2
6

4
 

3
8
 

-2
6
4

 
0

 
 

F
in

a
n
c
e

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
1

,5
3

5
 

-3
8

5
 

1
4

4
2

 
9

3
 

In
c
lu

d
e
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
, 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 F

u
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 A
w

a
rd

s
 

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 
3
1

5
 

2
1

8
 

3
1
5

 
0

 
 

S
E

N
 –

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

9
1

5
 

3
6

7
 

8
8
3

 
3

2
 

 
Y

o
u

th
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
1

,0
7

6
 

4
1

4
 

1
0

6
8

 
8

 
 

IS
 -

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

C
o
s
ts

 
1
3

8
 

6
4
 

1
5
9

 
(2

1
) 

 
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

  
 

4
0

7
 

1
5

8
 

3
9
9

 
8

 
 

O
th

e
r 

 
4

0
 

2
3
 

6
3

 
(2

3
) 

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 T

o
ta

l 
 

2
2

,7
8
9

 
8
,1

8
5
 

2
3

,5
7
2

 
(7

8
3

) 
 

 

 



CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 5 OCTOBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Hilary Hall, Improvement Manager on (01432) 
260801 

 
Q1PerformanceDigest0510070.doc  

 PERFORMANCE DIGEST – QUARTER 1 – 2007/2008 

Report By: Head of Commissioning and Improvement 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To present the Quarter 1 Performance Digest for Children’s Service (April – June 2007) 
and to highlight key areas arising from the performance for the first quarter. 

Financial Implications 

2. Remedial action in respect of the directorate’s performance may require reallocation of 
resources within existing budgets. 

Background 

3. The Committee will recall that the directorate plan was considered by the Committee in 
June 2007, together with the outturn Performance Digest for 2006/2007.  It was noted 
that the Performance Digest would be produced quarterly and would be the key 
mechanism for monitoring the key performance indicators, both for the Children and 
Young People’s Directorate and the wider Children’s Trust.  Performance management 
was one of the success criteria identified by Government Office West Midlands 

Considerations 

4. The Performance Digest for Quarter 1 of 2007/2008 is included with this agenda for 
Members’ consideration (copies are available from the below contact.).  The Digest is set 
out in relation to the five outcomes of Every Child Matters and includes a headline page 
for each outcome.  Data, including comparative data, is set out in a graphical form for the 
Performance Assessment Framework (PAF) indicators and this will be extended, in the 
Quarter 2 Digest, to the Best Value Performance Indicators.  The Quarter 2 Performance 
Digest will be published in the third week of October 

5. In summary, key areas in each of the outcome areas, to which the Committee’s attention 
should be drawn, are set out below: 

Be Healthy 

The number of schools achieving the Healthy Schools Standard (page 9 of 58) remains 
on target to be achieved.  The target in this financial year is 78 and at the end of the first 
quarter, 65 schools had achieved the standard.  The bulk of indicators in this outcome 
area relate to the Teenage Lifestyle Survey and work is ongoing to identify indicators and 
set baselines. 

Staying Safe 

The rate of referrals of children in need per 10,000 population aged under 18 (page 11 of 
58) has decreased and shows signs of levelling off.  However, it is too early in the year to 

AGENDA ITEM 9

15



CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 5 OCTOBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Hilary Hall, Improvement Manager on (01432) 
260801 

 
Q1PerformanceDigest0510070.doc  

be clear about the trend.  Monthly monitoring continues.  The number of referrals has 
had an impact on the percentage of initial assessments completed within 7 working days 
(page 14 of 58).  Performance dropped slightly in quarter 1.  Capacity in the Referral and 
Assessment Team remains a pressure point and a strategy for recruitment of sufficient 
experienced staff is in place.  Robust monitoring and risk management is carried out by 
the team managers and health colleagues and the target for initial assessments is 
considered to be achievable by year end.  The percentage of core assessments 
completed within 35 days of commencement (page 16 of 58) improved significantly in the 
first quarter of 2007/2008 and the percentage of child protection reviews on time (page 
21 of 58) remains at 100%, placing Herefordshire in the highest performance band. 

Enjoy and Achieve 

The majority of indicators in this outcome area relate to exam results and the unvalidated 
results for the last academic year have only just been published.  Initial consideration 
indicates positive improvement in Key Stage 2 and GCSE results.  Further analysis will 
be included in the Quarter 2 Performance Digest.  There is continuing good performance 
in relation to the provision of statements of Special Educational Needs (page 41 of 58) at 
100%.  School attendance (page 42 of 58) remains an issue in Herefordshire with a 
robust strategy required to achieve the targets in the Local Area Agreement. 

Make a Positive Contribution 

The percentage of looked after children who communicated their views in reviews (page 
46 of 58) continues to show good performance with Herefordshire ahead of its statistical 
neighbours.  In relation to the two Youth Service indicators (page 47 of 58), performance 
in the first quarter was down on last year and below national targets. 

Achieve Economic Wellbeing 

The number of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (page 50 of 58) 
was slightly below target for quarter 1.  However, the period covered is a time when 
young people are leaving school and making choices for the future.  It will not be 
possible to get a true picture of performance until the end of the calendar year.  Figures 
for quarters 1 and 2 are indicative only and should be treated with some caution. 

Service Management 

The bulk of the indicators in this outcome area relate to finance and no data was 
available in the first quarter.  The outcomes of the social worker recruitment strategy is 
starting to show positive impacts (page 56 of 58). 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Committee assess the levels of performance achieved in 
Quarter 1 of 2007/2008 and consider if further reports and/or 
action is judged to be necessary. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified 

16



Children & Young People 

Performance Digest 

2007/08

1st Quarter

Outturn data to 30th June 2007 

(Academic year data remains for 2005/6)



PAGE

3

4

5

6

8

6

10

11

28

11

17

22

26

27

30

31

42

31

41

44

45

47

45

48

49

50

49

51

52

55

52

57Supporting statistics

Finance

SEN

Outcome 6 - Service Management

Headlines - Service Management

Doing Now

Outcome 5 - Achieving Economic Well-Being

Headlines - Achieving Economic Well-Being

Offending PAF C18

Outcome 3 - Enjoy & Achieve

Looked After Children (LAC)

LAC Reviews

Adoption

Headlines - Enjoy & Achieve

Contents

Headlines - Being Healthy

Outcome 1 - Being Healthy

Outcome 2 - Staying Safe

Health of Looked After Children

Headlines - Staying Safe

Other PIs - Being Healthy

Bands and Thresholds

Introduction

Other PIs - Service Management

Other PIs - Staying Safe

Other PIs- Enjoy & Achieve 

Other PIs - Making a Positive Contribution

Other PIs - Achieving Economic Well-Being

Outcome 4 - Making a Positive Contribution

Headlines - Making a Positive Contribution

Education

Referrals, Assessments, Reviews and Caseloads

Child Protection



Welcome to the first quarter Performance Digest for 2007/2008.

The Digest is the key mechanism for monitoring all the indicators against which we are 

required to report for Government, Corporate and local requirements.  It will also be enhanced 

in the coming quarter to include all the indicators from the Children and Young People’s 

Delivery Plan, becoming a key document for the Children’s Trust.

The information relating to all the PAF and some Best Value indicators is shown in graphical 

form.  It is our intention to use this format for all the rest of the indicators as from the Quarter 2 

edition of the Digest.  This has not been possible to achieve for Quarter 1 so these other 

indicators are included in a tabular form, under the relevant outcome.

Where available, comparator data for England and statistical neighbours is included for all the 

indicators, as well as previous outturn data for at least 2005/2006 and 2006/2007.  In addition, 

the PAF indicators include the bands and thresholds.

All the indicators have been given a RAG rating based on previous years’ trend, comparative 

data and anticipated performance in the current year.

The RAG rating is illustrated in a slightly different way from the usual block colour.  Symbols 

have been used, as follows, which will hopefully help in terms of black and white printing:

- Green is represented by a green star and means on target/met target 

- Amber is represented by an amber circle and means some progress or not possible to 

determine a trend because data not available

- Red is represented by a red triangle and means not on target 

For each indicator, an analysis/progress statement has been provided by the responsible 

officer.

For each outcome area, there is a summary page showing the number of indicators flagged 

green, amber or red, together with headline comments for the outcome.

As ever, I am very open to suggestions and feedback on how we can improve the Digest.  It is 

a key document for you and therefore, it needs to meet your needs.  Please get in touch and 

let me know.  I’m based in Blackfriars (room 15D), extension 0801.

Hilary Hall

Improvement Manager

27 July 2007

3 of 3



* 
P

le
a

s
e

 n
o

te
 -

 c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r 

d
a

ta
 r

e
la

te
s

 t
o

 2
0

0
5

/6
 n

e
w

 s
ta

ti
s

ti
c

a
l 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
r 

g
ro

u
p

. 
P

le
a

s
e

 s
e

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 s

ta
ts

 f
o

r 
li

s
t 

in
 f

u
ll
.

C
h

a
n

g
e

s

C
F

/A
1

S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
P

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

-
-

-
-

0
<

1
6

.0
1

-
-

1
6

.0
1

<
2

0
2

0
<

=
1

0
0

C
F

/A
2

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
C

L
A

0
<

2
5

2
5

<
4

5
4

5
<

5
0

5
0

<
7

0
7

0
<

=
1

0
0

-
-

-
-

C
F

/A
3

R
e

-r
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
P

R
0

<
3

3
<

6
6

<
8

8
<

1
0

1
0

<
1

5
1

5
<

1
7

.2
1

1
7

.2
1

<
2

0
2

0
<

2
4

2
4

<
=

1
0

0

R
e

v
is

e
d

 2
0

0
4

-0
5

C
F

/A
4

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
 l
e

a
v
e

rs
0

<
0

.4
0

.4
<

0
.5

0
.5

<
0

.6
-

0
.6

 +
-

-
-

-

N
e

w
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
6

-0
7

 *
*

C
F

/A
7

0
C

A
M

H
S

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

4
,5

6
-8

9
-1

1
1

2
-1

4
1

5
,1

6

C
F

/B
7

C
L

A
 -

 f
o

s
te

r/
p

la
c
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
0

<
5

5
5

5
<

7
0

7
0

<
8

0
8

0
<

8
5

8
5

<
9

0
9

0
<

9
5

-
9

5
<

=
1

0
0

-

C
F

/C
1

8
F

in
a

l 
w

a
rn

in
g

s
/r

e
p

ri
m

a
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
v
ic

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
C

L
A

-
0

<
1

1
<

3
-

-
-

-
3

+
-

C
F

/C
1

9
H

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r
0

<
5

0
5

0
<

6
0

6
0

<
7

0
7

0
<

8
0

8
0

<
=

1
0

0
-

-
-

-

C
F

/C
2

0
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 c

a
s
e

s
0

<
9

2
.5

9
2

.5
<

9
5

9
5

<
9

7
.5

9
7

.5
<

1
0

0
1

0
0

-
-

-
-

C
F

/C
2

1
D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
P

R
-

-
-

-
-

0
<

1
0

1
0

<
1

5
1

5
<

2
0

2
0

<
=

1
0

0

C
F

/C
2

3
A

d
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r
0

<
3

3
<

6
6

<
7

7
<

8
8

<
2

5
-

-
2

5
<

=
1

0
0

-

C
F

/C
2

4
C

h
ild

re
n

 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
a

b
s
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 s

c
h

o
o

l
-

-
-

-
0

<
5

5
<

1
0

1
0

<
1

5
1

5
<

2
0

2
0

<
=

1
0

0

C
F

/D
3

5
L

o
n

g
 t

e
rm

 s
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
C

L
A

0
<

4
0

4
0

<
5

0
5

0
<

6
0

6
0

<
7

0
7

0
<

8
0

-
-

8
0

<
=

1
0

0
-

C
F

/E
4

4
R

e
la

ti
v
e

 s
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 f

a
m

ily
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
-

0
<

2
7

2
7

<
3

2
3

2
<

4
3

-
-

4
3

<
4

8
4

8
<

=
1

0
0

-

C
F

/C
6

3
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
s

0
<

7
0

7
0

<
8

0
8

0
<

9
0

9
0

<
9

5
9

5
<

=
1

0
0

C
F

/C
6

4
T

im
in

g
 o

f 
c
o

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
0

<
6

0
6

0
<

7
0

7
0

<
7

5
7

5
<

8
0

8
0

<
=

1
0

0

C
F

/B
8

 
C

o
s
t 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r
£

0
<

£
3

9
4

£
3

9
4

<
£

4
2

3
£

4
2

3
<

£
5

6
4

£
5

6
4

<
£

6
3

0
>

=
£

6
3

0

M
R

/D
7

4
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

0
(>

0
)<

5
5

<
1

1
1

1
<

1
7

1
7

+

N
e

w
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
6

-0
7

C
F

/C
6

8
T

im
e

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
s
 f

o
r 

L
A

C
0

<
8

0
8

0
<

8
5

8
5

<
9

0
9

0
<

9
5

9
5

<
=

1
0

0

C
F

/C
6

9
D

is
ta

n
c
e

 f
ro

m
 h

o
m

e

P
A

F
 B

a
n

d
in

g

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 u
rg

e
n
tl
y

A
s
k
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

A
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

, 
b
u
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 r

o
o
m

 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

G
o
o
d

V
e
ry

 G
o
o
d

B
a
n

d
s
 &

 K
e
y
 t

h
re

s
h

o
ld

s
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
6
-0

7
 -

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

B
a
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
7
-0

8
 u

n
a
v
a
il
a
b

le
 a

t 
p

re
s
e
n

t)

lo
w

h
ig

h

N
o

te
s

T
h
e
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
a
b
o
v
e
 m

e
a
n
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

a
t 
fo

r 
C

F
/A

2
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 5
0
%

 o
r 

m
o
re

 a
n
d
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 7

0
%

 w
ill

 b
e
 

p
a
id

 i
n
 b

a
n
d
 4

.

**
 S

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
5
-0

6
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
 b

a
n
d
 i
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
c
o
re

s
 o

n
ly

 1
 o

n
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 4

 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
7
 (

a
s
s
u
m

in
g
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 b
a
n
d
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
).

U
n
it
 c

o
s
ts

 (
fo

r 
C

F
/B

8
) 

a
re

 c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 -
 s

e
e
 P

A
F

 2
0
0
4
-0

5
 v

o
lu

m
e
 p

2
1
0
 (

C
S

C
I,
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
).

4
 o

f 
5
8



Back to Contents page

Headlines - Being Healthy

There are 17 indicator outcomes recorded.

Direction of travel results are as follows:

1 Green �

12 Amber 

4 Red 

NB: Direction of travel is based on previous years' performance trends and 

anticipated performance for 2007/08.

Summary

1. The number of schools achieving the Healthy Schools Standard (HCS 24) is on 

track to achieve the 2007/2008 target.

2. The bulk of the indicators in this outcome area relate to the Teenage Lifestyle 

Survey and consequently, there are no targets and no outturns to report.

3. Other indicators in this outcome area can only be collected annually.

The RAG rating used is based on the following:

Green  – on target/met target

Amber  – some progress/data not yet available so not 

possible to determine trend

Red  – not on target

5 of 58



Health of Looked After Children

(See Bands 

and

Thresholds

for details 

of all PAF 

Bandings)

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-08

Outturn

Herefordshire 88 86 87 90 90 93 N/A

IPF Data 76 77 77 82

England 74 77 79 83

Outcome 1 - Being Healthy

PAF CF/C19: Health of looked after children 

PAF C19: Health of looked after children. 

88 86 87
90 90

93

0
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn

Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF C19/1037 SC. This PI refers specifically to the average percentage of children who had 

been looked after for 12 months who had had a dental check, and those who had had an annual 

health assessment. 

Data is unavailable for this PI for Quarter 1 07/08 - Data will be available at Quarter 3 07/08.

Whilst we failed to meet our ambitious target for 2006/7, steps put in place since the 

appointment of a new LAC Health Visitor should ensure an upturn in performance in the 

current year.

6 of 58



(See Bands 

and

Thresholds

for details 

of all PAF 

Bandings)

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06  2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-08

Outturn

Herefordshire 12 15 15 N/A

IPF Data 12

England 11

 PAF CF/A70: Progress made towards a comprehensive CAMHS

Back to Contents page

 PAF CF/A70: Progress made towards a comprehensive children and adolescents 

Mental Health Service.

12

15 15

0
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06  2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF A70/1043 SC. This PI measures the progress towards delivery of a comprehensive 

Children and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS).

Data is unavailable for this PI for Quarter 1 07/08 - Data is collected on an annual basis and 

will be available at Year End.

There is no change to the analysis made at the end of 2006/7. Achieving maximum performance 

on this PI  (outturn of 16) is affected by the availability of regional Tier 4 services. From April 

2007, the Strategic Health Authority (SHA) has taken over responsibility for management of Tier 

4 services.

7 of 58



O
th

e
r 

P
Is

 -
 B

e
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

y

B
e
 H

e
a
lt

h
y

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
n

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 c

o
d

e
s

0
5
/0

6

O
u

tt
u

rn

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

d
a
ta

 A
v
. 
0
5
/0

6

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r

d
a
ta

 0
5
/0

6

0
6
/0

7
 O

u
tt

u
rn

0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

0
7
/0

8
 O

u
tt

u
rn

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
A

G
 v

 

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

1
0
4
7
S

C
/B

V
P

I 
1
9
7
/H

C
S

8
5
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 
1
5
-1

7
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
1
.4

%
0
%

0
%

-1
5
.7

%
-1

9
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

N
o
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

s
 t
h
is

 i
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 b
u
t 
a
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

H
C

S
 2

0
: 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
b
a
b
ie

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 b

re
a
s
t 
fe

d
 a

t 
6
 

w
e
e
k
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
ty

.
T

B
A

4
0
%

4
3
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

D
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 6
 w

e
e
k
s
 a

ft
e
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

e
n
d

H
C

S
 2

1
b

: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
b
a
b
ie

s
 b

o
rn

 t
o
 S

o
u
th

 W
y
e
 

m
o
th

e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 b

re
a
s
t-

fe
d
.

4
1
.2

%
3
4
%

4
0
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

D
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 6
 w

e
e
k
s
 a

ft
e
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

e
n
d

H
C

S
 2

1
a
: 

%
 o

f 
b
a
b
ie

s
 b

o
rn

 t
o
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

b
re

a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 a

t 
6
 w

e
e
k
s
.

1
2
.9

%
1
3
%

3
0
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

D
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 6
 w

e
e
k
s
 a

ft
e
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

e
n
d

H
C

S
 2

2
a
: 

M
e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
s
 f
o
r 

1
1
-1

5
 y

r 
o
ld

s
: 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 R

a
te

s
.

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

 w
h
e
re

 P
C

T
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

is
 R

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

b
e
in

g
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y

H
C

S
 2

2
c
: 

M
e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
s
 f
o
r 

1
1
-1

5
 y

r 
o
ld

s
: 

E
a
ti
n
g
 5

 a
 d

a
y
.

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

 w
h
e
re

 P
C

T
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

is
 R

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

b
e
in

g
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y

H
C

S
 2

2
d

: 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
s
 f
o
r 

te
e
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
O

b
e
s
it
y

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

 w
h
e
re

 P
C

T
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

is
 R

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

b
e
in

g
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y

H
C

S
 2

2
e
: 

M
e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
s
 f
o
r 

1
1
-1

5
 y

r 
o
ld

s
: 

A
lc

o
h
o
l 
C

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
.

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
H

F
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 f
ro

m
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
. 
 L

o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
c
o
lle

g
e
s
, 
P

u
p
il 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
C

e
n
tr

e
s
, 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 

a
n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 Z

ig
 Z

a
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ra

p
e
u
ti
c
 c

o
u
n
s
e
lli

n
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 v

ia
 I
n
fo

 Z
o
n
e
 @

 W
y
e
b
ri
d
g
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
- 

fu
n
d
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 
 O

n
g
o
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
a
s
e
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 C

ru
c
ia

l 
C

re
w

 a
n
d
 ‘
O

u
t 
o
f 
it
’ 
th

e
a
tr

e
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

H
C

S
 2

2
f:

 M
e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
s
 f
o
r 

1
1
-1

5
 y

r 
o
ld

s
: 

D
ru

g
 u

s
e
.

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
H

F
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 f
ro

m
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
. 
 L

o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
c
o
lle

g
e
s
, 
P

u
p
il 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
C

e
n
tr

e
s
, 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 

a
n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 Z

ig
 Z

a
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ra

p
e
u
ti
c
 c

o
u
n
s
e
lli

n
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 v

ia
 I
n
fo

 Z
o
n
e
 @

 W
y
e
b
ri
d
g
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
- 

fu
n
d
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 
 O

n
g
o
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
a
s
e
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 C

ru
c
ia

l 
C

re
w

 a
n
d
 ‘
O

u
t 
o
f 
it
’ 
th

e
a
tr

e
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

H
C

S
 2

2
g

: 
M

e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
s
 f
o
r 

1
1
-1

5
 y

r 
o
ld

s
: 

S
c
o
re

s
 f
o
r 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
.

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

 w
h
e
re

 P
C

T
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

is
 R

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

b
e
in

g
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y

8
 o

f 
5
8



B
e
 H

e
a
lt

h
y

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
n

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 c

o
d

e
s

0
5
/0

6

O
u

tt
u

rn

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

d
a
ta

 A
v
. 
0
5
/0

6

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r

d
a
ta

 0
5
/0

6

0
6
/0

7
 O

u
tt

u
rn

0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

0
7
/0

8
 O

u
tt

u
rn

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
A

G
 v

 

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

H
C

S
 2

4
: 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
5
 b

a
s
e
. 

8
1

5
1

7
8

6
5

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 f
ig

u
re

 w
it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 s

o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 m

a
d
e
 d

a
ily

 o
th

e
r 

ti
m

e
s
 a

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
ti
m

e
s
. 
W

e

a
re

 v
e
ry

 m
u
c
h
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t.

W
e
 h

a
d
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
5
3
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 2

5
 i
n
 t
h
is

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 7

8
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

M
a
rc

h
 0

8
. 
 A

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 6

5
. 
W

e
 a

ls
o
 h

a
d
 B

ri
lle

y
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
o
n
 o

u
r 

re
c
o
rd

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 

n
o
w

 c
lo

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 i
t 
fr

o
m

 o
u
r 

to
ta

l.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 f
ig

u
re

 w
it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 

s
o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 m

a
d
e
 d

a
ily

 o
th

e
r 

ti
m

e
s
 a

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
ti
m

e
s
. 
W

e
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 m
u
c
h
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 

�

H
C

S
 2

3
: 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
s
e
x
u
a
lly

 t
ra

n
s
m

it
te

d
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o
n
s
.

N
/A

N
/A

2
7
1

N
o
 D

a
ta

D
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

- 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 w

it
h
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 T
e
a
m

1
0
4
1
Y

J
: 

T
h
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
o
f 
ju

v
e
n
ile

s
 m

a
n
if
e
s
ti
n
g
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 t
o
 C

h
ild

 a
n
d
 A

d
o
le

s
c
e
n
t 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

9
0
%

9
1
%

9
4
%

9
1
.2

%
N

o
 D

a
ta

F
ir
s
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

d
a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 M
id

-A
u
g
u
s
t.

1
0
4
2
Y

J
: 

S
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
: 
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
.

9
7
%

8
7
%

9
6
%

1
0
0
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

1
0
4
0
N

T
:

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 i
n
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
w

h
o
 a

re
 a

g
e
d
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 1

8
2
4
%

?

N
o
 f
o
r 

A
p
ri
l-

M
a
y
 =

 5
5

(1
1
%

)

J
u
n
e
 d

a
ta

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
la

te
r 

th
is

 m
o
n
th

.  
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

is
 a

re
 a

s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 S

e
e
 

H
C

S
 2

2
e
-2

2
f

9
 o

f 
5
8



Back to Contents page

Headlines - Staying Safe

There are 38 indicator outcomes recorded.

Direction of travel results are as follows:

18 Green �

8 Amber 

10 Red 

2 N/A

NB: Direction of travel is based on previous years' performance trends and 

anticipated performance for 2007/08.

Summary

1. The indicators relating to number and timing of core assessments and long term 

stability of LAC placements shows significantly improved performance in the first 

quarter.

2. There continues to be good performance in relation to reviews of child protection 

cases, duration and number on the child protection register, adoptions of LAC (best 

interest decision), allocation of social workers and de-registrations.

The RAG rating used is based on the following:

Green – on target/met target

Amber – some progress/data not yet available so

not possible to determine trend

Red  – not on target

10 of 58



Referrals, Assessments, Reviews and Caseloads

CH141: Referrals of children in need per 10,000 population aged under 18

Year 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 220 239 159 175 266 280 248

IPF Data 473 408 425 411

England 557 562 546 566

Outcome 2 - Staying Safe

CH141: Referrals of children in need per 10,000 population aged under 18.

220
239

159
175

266
280

248

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn
Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

R
a

te
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 U

1
8

)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

CH141/2015 SC. The referral rate has decreased since peaking at 06/07 year end (266 

referrals per 10,000 U18) .  The position at the end of the first quarter 07/08 is 248.  This 

sees Herefordshire's outturn move away from the target set for 07/08 of 280 and statistical 

neighbour rates, for which there is only data up to 05/06.

The number of referrals shows signs of levelling off. It is too early in the year to be clear 

about the trend.  Monthly monitoring of this figure will continue, together with related targets 

for DIS 1704, CH 142 and CH143. Review of the target will be undertaken if necessary. 

11 of 58



CH142: The percentage of referrals that are repeat referrals within 12 months

Year 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 28.2 27.6 18.2 17.2 20.3 18 19.5

IPF Data 21.1 22.3 25.0 24.6

England 21.0 20.7 20.8 21.4�

CH142: The percentage of referrals that are repeat referrals within 12 months.

18.2

20.3

18

19.5

28.2
27.6

17.2

15.0

17.0

19.0

21.0

23.0

25.0

27.0

29.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn

Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

CH142/2016 SC. The referral rate has mirrored the decrease in the referral rate CH141.  The 

outturn for 07/08 Q1 is at  19.5%.  This is 0.8% lower than the position at the end of 06/07 

(20.3%) and more in line with the 07/08 target of 18%.    Herefordshire's performance remains 

favourable in comparison with the 05/06 position for statistical neighbours and Eng. average.

This figure continues to be higher than expected. An audit of repeat referrals is planned for the 

second quarter, with learning from findings to inform future practice.

12 of 58



CH143: The percentage of referrals of children in need that led to initial assessments

Year 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 34.1 32.0 35.3 54.0 66.0 65 64.5

IPF Data 45.6 62.8 60.6 66.0

England 49.2 54.4 55.1 55.2

CH143: The percentage of referrals of children in need that led to initial assessments.

64.56566.0

54.0

35.3
32.034.1

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

CH143/2017 SC. The outturn for quarter 1 07/08 has dipped slightly below the position at 

06/07 year end (66%).  The present outturn is 64.5% - this is half a percent short of 07/08 

target.  Herefordshire's performance remains in line with statistical neighbour performance 

for 05/06.

Performance in this area is continuing to improve, and is on line to meet target. This PI is 

closely related to DIS1704, CH141 and CH142 and linked to the work being undertaken on 

development of CAF.  The dramatic increase in referrals during the last year means that the 

absolute numbers of assessments has increased by more than 50%, contributing to the 

pressures on DIS 1704 in particular. CAF pilot work and extension to whole county planned 

over the next year should see increase in % initial assessments and a possible downturn in 

referrals. Monitoring will be maintained monthly. Information on comparator group not yet 

available.

13 of 58



DIS1704: The percentage of initial assessments completed within 7 working days

Year 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 74.4 77.2 68.1 70.1 58.7 68 56.9

IPF Data 58.4 64.1 62.7 64.9

England 55.7 59.1 63.5 66.4

DIS1704: The percentage of initial assessments completed within 7 working days.

56.9

68

58.7

70.1
68.1

77.2

74.4

25.0

35.0

45.0

55.0

65.0

75.0

85.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn
Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

DIS1704/2020 SC. The timeliness within which initial assessments have been completed has 

deteriorated slightly against the year end position for 06/07 (58.7%).  The Outturn for 07/08 Q1 is 

56.9% completed within 7 days.  This is 11.1% short of the target for 07/08 (68%) and means that 

Herefordshire is performing below both statistical neighbours and Eng. average for 05/06. 

Capacity in the Referral and Assessment Team remains a pressure point, affecting 

performance in this area. A strategy for recruitment of sufficient experienced staff is in place, 

and further measures are in train. It is likely that these will not come to fruition until the last 

quarter of the year, so temporary recruitment drive continues. Performance monitoring and 

risk management is carried out by the Referral and Assessment Team managers, service 

manager and Health colleagues. The target set remains the aim.

14 of 58



CH145: The number of core assessments of children in need per 10,000 population aged under 18

Year 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 46.9 46.8 30.4 30.0 51.6 50 56.7

IPF Data 49.4 63.8 74.0 76.5

England 55.3 60.0 73.7 81.6
�

CH145: The number of core assessments of children in need per 10,000 population aged under 18.

56.7

50

51.6

30.030.4

46.846.9

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

R
a

te
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 U

1
8

)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

CH145/2021 SC. The rate of core assessments per 10,000 population aged under 18 has 

increased by 5.1 (per 10,000 U18) from the year end position for 06/07 of 51.6 to 56.7 at 

Q1 07/08.  As such, Herefordshire currently exceeds the target set for 07/08 (50). 

Performance remains behind statistical neighbours and Eng. average as at 05/06.

Improved outturn has been as a result of the increase in appropriate referrals of children in 

need and focus on continuing assessment of children's needs once receiving a service. 

Target for 2007/8 informed by performance gap analysis, and is on course to improve. 

Monitoring quarterly with team managers.

15 of 58



See

Bands for 

more info

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 66 76 61 66 73

IPF Data 70 76

England 67 74

PAF CF/64: Timing of core assessments

�

PAF CF/64: Timing of core assessments.

61

73

66

76

66

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF C64/2022 SC. This PI measures the percentage of core assessments completed 

within 35 days of commencement.   Performance for Q1 07/08 is at 73% - this is an 

increase against 06/07 performance (61%) and exceeds the 07/08 target of 66%.  The 

improvement in performance has shifted Herefordshire from a two blob banding to three 

blob status and put the authority in line with statistical neighbours and Eng. average for 

05/06.

This has improved and it is intended to sustain the improvement through monthly monitoring 

of performance by Performance Improvement group of managers.

16 of 58



Child Protection

Month Register Regs De-regs

Jul-06 56 5 12

Aug-06 67 12 1

Sep-06 73 12 6

Oct-06 70 3 6

Nov-06 60 1 11

Dec-06 50 8 18

Jan-07 46 6 10

Feb-07 51 8 3

Mar-07 55 6 2

Apr-07 59 11 7

May-07 58 4 5

Jun-07 51 0 7

Neglect Emotional Sexual Physical

June-07 32 11 8 0

CPR by Category of Registration

Number of children on the Child Protection Register July 06 - June 07

Breakdown by No's registering and deregistering 

At the end of June 2007 there were 51 children on the child protection register. The following tables 

give a breakdown of the current child protection data.

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

J
u
l-
0
6

A
u
g
-0

6

S
e
p
-0

6

O
c
t-

0
6

N
o
v
-0

6

D
e
c
-0

6

J
a
n
-0

7

F
e
b
-0

7

M
a
r-

0
7

A
p
r-

0
7

M
a
y
-0

7

J
u
n
-0

7

R
e
g

is
te

r 
a
t 

m
o

n
th

 e
n

d

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

R
e
g

s
/D

e
-r

e
g

s

Register

Regs

De-regs

CPR by Category of Registration for June 2007

32

11

0

8

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Neglect Emotional Sexual Physical

Category

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
n

 C
P

R

A breakdown of children on the Child 

Protection Register by category of abuse.

17 of 58



Year 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 14.7 12.4 11.0 16.8 14.8 17 13.7

IPF Data 21.1 19.4 20.3 21.2

England 25.9 25.6 25.1 25.3

CH01: The number of children on the Child Protection Register per 10,000 population aged under 18

CH01: The number of children on the Child Protection Register per 10,000 population aged under 18. 

12.4

11.0

16.8

14.8

17

13.7
14.7

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn
Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

R
a

te
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 U

1
8

)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

CH01/2023 SC. There are fewer children on the Child Protection Register at Q1 07/08 than at 

the end of 06/07.  This is mirrored in the outturn for CH01.  The Q1 07/08 outturn is 13.7 (per 

10,000 under 18) - this is less than both the 06/07 outturn  (14.8) and 07/08 target (17).

Performance continues to be low in comparison with both statistical neighbours and Eng 

average.

This is low in relation to the target and national comparative group.  The indicator is 

addressed at a Performance Improvement Group to ensure the  development of thresholds 

are identified and kept under review.

18 of 58



See

Bands for 

more info

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 36 21 - 19 15 15 16

IPF Data 13 14 14 17

England 13 13 13 14

PAF CF/A3: Re-registrations on the Child Protection Register

PAF CF/A3: Re-registrations on the Child Protection Register.

36

21

0

19

15 15
16

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF A3/2028 SC/LAA 41/HCS 26 Measures the percentage of children registered on the 

Child Protection Register who had been previously been registered.  The indicator is volatile 

due to the small numbers involved. The Q1 07/08 outturn (16%) is a slight decrease on both 

the 06/07 outturn (15%) and 07/08 target (15%). It does however mean that Herefordshire has 

dropped to a four blob banding and is behind England average for 05/06.

Action is in place for monthly monitoring through multi agency core groups so the 

recommendations regarding de-registration are reached through robust assessments and at a 

multi agency level.

19 of 58



See

Bands for 

more info

Year 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire - 7.6 - 0.0 1.2 5 1.1

IPF Data 6.9 6.8 4.8 4.8

England 8.2 6.1 5.1 5.1 5.1

PAF CF/C21: Duration on the Child Protection Register

�

PAF CF/C21: Duration on the Child Protection Register.

0.0 0.0 0.0

1.2

5

1.1

7.6

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF C21/2036 SC Calculates the percentage of children de-registered from the Child 

Protection Register who had been on the register for two years or more.  The Q1 07/08 

outturn is 1.1% (equates to 1 child in a small cohort) - this is a minor improvement in 

performance against the 06/07 outturn (1.2%) and still exceeding target for 07/08 5%).

This places Herefordshire in the highest possible band for this indicator (four blob).

This performance is measured through team managers' supervision of social workers.  The 

Independent Chairs have a role in open dialogue at Multi Agency Child Protection 

Conferences to ensure that the most appropriate plan can address the child's needs.

20 of 58



See

Bands for 

more info

Year 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 100 93 100 100 100 100

IPF Data 97 99 100

England 99 98 99

PAF CF/C20: Reviews of child protection cases

�

PAF CF/C20: Reviews of child protection cases (BVPI 162).

100

93

100 100 100 100

88.0

90.0

92.0

94.0

96.0

98.0

100.0

102.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn
Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF C20/2034 SC/BVPI 162 Measures the percentage of Child Protection reviews  on 

time in the year for all children who have been on the Child Protection Register for three 

months or more, at year end.  The 1st quarter 07/08 outturn remains at 100% and 

maintains the level of performance from 06/07 and meets target expectation for 07/08. 

This places us in the highest possible band (five blob) - good consistent performance.

We continue to have a '5 blob' rating which is the highest category possible.  An enhanced 

structure is in place that will ensure that Child Protection Conferences take place within the 

agreed timescales.  The direction of travel is to remain at a performance of 100%.  This will occur 

through the constant monitoring by the Independent Chairs and the auditing system that is in 

place in the Planning Audit and Review Team.

21 of 58



Looked After Children

Month LAC Adm’ns Ceases Care Order C A 1989 77

Jul-06 167 4 7 Deemed Care Order 0

Aug-06 169 6 3 Interim Care Order 12

Sep-06 167 6 8 Section 20 Accommodated 64

Oct-06 167 4 4 S.O. with residence requirement 1

Nov-06 168 4 1 EPO 0

Dec-06 170 2 2 Remanded into LA accom 1

Jan-07 171 4 4 Freeing/Placement  Order 13

Feb-07 169 1 3 TOTAL 168

Mar-07 170 7 5

Apr-07 170 1 2

May-07 170 2 2

Jun-07 168 2 3

No. % Numbers

in County

Numbers

out of 

County

Foster Care – LA 79 47% 71 8

Foster Care – Agency 17 10% 9 8

Relative or Friend 29 17% 21 8

Adoptive Placement 10 6% -- --

Residential Agency 22 13% 12 10

Placed with Parents 11 7% 11 0

Independent Living 0 0% 0 0

Total 168 100% 124 34

0 years 6 9 years 9

1 year 8 10 years 5

2 years 3 11 years 8

3 years 5 12 years 13

4 years 5 13 years 15

5 years 4 14 years 14

6 years 3 15 years 25

7 years 3 16 years 23

8 years 8 17 years 11

TOTAL 45 123

TOTAL 168

Breakdown by no's entering and leaving the LAC 

System Breakdown by legal status

Type of Placement

Breakdown by age 

Number of Looked After Children July 06 - June 07

At the end of June 2007 there were 168 Looked After Children in the County. The following tables 

give a breakdown of the current LAC data.

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

J
u

l-
0

6

A
u

g
-0

6

S
e

p
-0

6

O
c
t-

0
6

N
o

v
-0

6

D
e

c
-0

6

J
a

n
-0

7

F
e

b
-0

7

M
a

r-
0

7

A
p

r-
0

7

M
a

y
-0

7

J
u

n
-0

7

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k
e
d

 

A
ft

e
r

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
d

m
'n

s
/C

e
a
s
e
s

LAC

Adm’ns

Ceases

Table to illustrate the numbers of children 

entering the Looked After system. 
The table below shows the number of 

children looked after at end June 2007 by 

their legal status.

Children in the 

LAC system at 

end June by 

age group.

A breakdown of Looked After Children by type of placement and geographical placement.

22 of 58



2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 77.9 80 78.4

IPF Data

England

PAF CF/B79: Children aged at least 10 and under 16 looked after in foster 

placements or placed for adoption.

�

PAF B79/2056 SC A new indicator in 06/07 (replacing PAF B7) - it measures the 

percentage of looked after children aged 10 to 15 who are in foster care and adoptive 

placements.  A high outturn is desirable.  The outturn for Q1 07/08 is 78.4% - this is an 

improvement on 06/07 (77.9) and only slightly adrift of 07/08 target (80%).  PAF B79 is 

unbanded and has no statistical neighbour and England average data for comparison.

PAF CF/B79: Children aged at least 10 and under 16 looked after in foster placements or placed for 

adoption.

77.9
80 78.4

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn

Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

Continued good performance

23 of 58



2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 86.7 68.8 71.4 59.7 62.2 62.0 66

IPF Data 61.1 66.4 66.5 63.6

England 62.8 63.1 64.4 64.8

PAF D78: Long term stability of placements for looked after children (formerly 2065SC 05/06)

�

PAF D78/2044 SC. This indicator replaces PAF D35, from 06/07 - It measures the 

percentage of all looked after children under 16 years who have been in care for at least two 

and a half years and in their current placement for two years.  Q1 07/08 performance 

(65.8%) exceeds both 06/07 performance (62.2%) and 07/08 target (62%) and puts 

Herefordshire in line with statistical neighbours and national performance for 05/06.  There 

are no bandings yet for this PI.

PAF D78: Long term stability of placements for looked after children (formerly 2065SC 05/06).

86.7

68.8
71.4

62.2 62.0

66

59.7

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn
Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

Performance on this indicator is ahead of target.

24 of 58



See

Bands for 

more info

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 7 6 9 8 9

IPF Data 14 13

England 13 12

PAF CF/A1: The number of children looked after with 3 or more placements during 

the year (BVPI 49)

�

PAF A1/2043 SC/BVPI 49.This PI measures the percentage of looked after children with 

three or more placements.  Performance for Q1 07/08 is level with that achieved in 06/07, at 

9%, and only 1% short of the target set for 07/08 (8%).   Herefordshire is still in the highest 

blob banding for this indicator (five blob) and ahead of comparator authorities and England 

average.

PAF CF/A1: The number of children looked after with 3 or more placements during the year (BVPI 

49).

7

6

9

8

9

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

The last year has seen increasing "churn" in the LAC system with some new entrants moving 

from one placement to another and children placed for longer periods of respite falling foul  of 

the "21 day" rule, even when returning to a long-term placement.

25 of 58



LAC Reviews

See

Bands for 

more info

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 90 97 100 98

IPF Data 84

England 84

PAF CF/C68: Timeliness of LAC reviews.

�

PAF C68/2064 SC This PI was introduced in 05/06 to measure the timeliness of the 

reviews held for Looked After Children.  This indicator is a count of children rather than 

reviews - if a child has three reviews in a year and one is late, this will count the child as 

being late.  The outturn for Q1 07/08 is 98% - this is an improvement upon the 06/07 

outturn (97%) but still slightly short of 07/08 target (100%).  Herefordshire sits in the 

highest blob banding (five blob) for this PI and is outperforming against statistical 

neighbours and Eng average.

PAF CF/C68: Timeliness of LAC reviews.

90

97

100

98

75.0

80.0

85.0

90.0

95.0

100.0

105.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn
Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

We continue to have a '5 blob' rating which is the highest category possible.  The direction 

of travel is to increase the current statistical performance through the constant monitoring 

by the Independent reviewing Officers and the auditing system that is in place within the 

Planning Audit and Review Team. 

26 of 58



Adoption

See

Bands for 

more info

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 4.8 9.7 10.8 4.1 8.0 4.6

IPF Data 8.3 7.5 8.6

England 7.7 7.5 7.6

Back to Contents page

PAF CF/C23: Adoptions of children looked after (BVPI 163)

PAF C23/2059 SC/BVPI 163  This PI measures the percentage of Looked after children 

adopted from care and includes Special Guardianship Orders.  The outturn for Q1 07/08 is 

4.6% and represents a minor increase in the number of adoptions/SGOs from 06/07 (4.1%).

Herefordshire falls short of 07/08 target by 3.4% (8%) and remains below its statistical 

neighbours and Eng average - Current performance equates to a two blob banding.

PAF CF/C23: Adoptions of children looked after (BVPI 163).

4.8

9.7

10.8

4.1

8.0

4.6

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

Due to the time lag between placement for adoption and granting of the order, this figure 

represents a dip in activity influenced by intense activity the previous year, uncertainty 

created by changes to the legal framework for Adoption, and long-term sick.

27 of 58



O
th

e
r 

P
Is

 -
 S

ta
y
in

g
 S

a
fe

S
ta

y
in

g
 S

a
fe

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
n

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 c

o
d

e
s

0
5
/0

6

O
u

tt
u

rn

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

d
a
ta

 A
v
. 
0
5
/0

6

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r

d
a
ta

 0
5
/0

6

0
6
/0

7
 O

u
tt

u
rn

0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

0
7
/0

8
 O

u
tt

u
rn

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
A

G
 v

 

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

2
0
4
0
S

C
/P

A
F

 C
F

/E
4
5
: 
E

th
n
ic

it
y
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 N

e
e
d

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

C
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
C

IN
 C

e
n
s
u
s
. 
 N

e
x
t 
c
e
n
s
u
s
 0

8
/0

9
 p

o
s
s
ib

ly
?

N
/A

2
0
5
4
S

C
/D

IS
 1

1
1
1
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

fo
s
te

re
d
 b

y
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
s
 o

r 
fr

ie
n
d
s

1
9
.5

%
1
2
.9

9
.8

1
9
.5

%
2
0
%

1
8
.6

%

2
0
6
0
S

C
/D

IS
 1

1
1
4
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 

a
 n

a
m

e
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

w
h
o
 i
s
 q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 a

s
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r

1
0
0
%

9
4
.8

%
9
3
.9

%
1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

9
9
%

O
n
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 h

a
s
 h

a
d
 n

o
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 T
h
e
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
 i
s
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
r,

 b
y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r.

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
is

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 w

e
e
k
ly

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
G

ro
u
p
 (

te
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

).
 R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 h
a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff
in

g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 f
u
ll 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

�

2
0
5
8
S

C
/D

IS
 1

1
1
5
: 
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
o
 w

e
re

 p
la

c
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in

 1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 b

e
s
t 
in

te
re

s
t 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e

6
7
%

7
4
.8

%
7
2
.5

%
1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

�

2
0
2
4
S

C
/D

IS
 1

2
1
9
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 o
n
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

w
h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a
llo

c
a
te

d

to
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r

0
%

0
.2

%
0
.2

%
0
%

0
%

0
%

T
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
7
/8

 i
s
 s

e
t 
to

 m
a
in

ta
in

 h
ig

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 w

e
e
k
ly

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
G

ro
u
p
 (

te
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

).
 T

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
.

�

2
0
3
8
S

C
/D

IS
 1

5
0
7
-1

5
0
9
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
lig

ib
le

, 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

a
n
d
 f
o
rm

e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 p

a
th

w
a
y
 p

la
n
s
, 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
a
d
v
is

e
r 

a
n
d
 a

re
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 
o
u
ts

id
e
 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

1
2
 D

a
ta

 c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 A

n
n
u
a
lly

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
A

P
A

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 -

 n
o
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 s
e
t

N
/A

2
0
1
9
S

C
/K

IG
S

 C
H

0
2
: 
In

it
ia

l 
C

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8

2
8
.1

3
6
.3

3
0
.2

2
3
.9

2
9

2
4
.7

T
h
is

 i
s
 l
o
w

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
 g

ro
u
p
. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 a

t 

a
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
G

ro
u
p
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
  
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 

k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
.

2
0
2
7
S

C
/K

IG
S

 C
H

0
3
: 

R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

u
n
d
e
r 

1
8

2
0
.6

3
0
.2

2
5
.9

2
0
.4

2
1

2
0
.4

T
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 a

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

lin
ic

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 r

e
m

a
in

 v
ig

ila
n
t 
a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 

th
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 4

7
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
.

2
0
3
5
S

C
/K

IG
S

 C
H

1
0
: 

D
e
-r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8

1
4
.7

3
0

2
5

2
2
.3

2
0

2
3
.7

T
h
e
 p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 a

re
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

t 
a
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 a

 m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
.

�

2
0
4
2
S

C
/K

IG
S

 C
H

3
9
: 

C
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8

4
2

6
0
.1

3
8
.9

4
5
.4

4
5

4
4
.9

U
p
w

a
rd

 p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
n
 L

A
C

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

.
�

2
0
5
2
S

C
/K

IG
S

 C
H

4
4
:

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

in

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

1
2
.6

%
1
2
%

1
3
.5

%

G
ro

w
th

 o
f 
ju

s
t 
o
v
e
r 

a
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
s
e
c
to

r 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

. 
S

ta
b
ili

ty
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

s
e
e
 a

b
o
v
e
) 

c
a
n
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

a
 r

e
tu

rn
 

fr
o
m

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 f
a
m

ily
-b

a
s
e
d
 c

a
re

H
C

S
 2

8
: 

%
 o

f 
1
1
-1

5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

b
u
lli

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

o
 D

a
ta

O
n
lin

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 f
ir
s
t 
d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l-
J
u
ly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r.

  
B

a
s
e
lin

e
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
.

2
0
3
9
S

C
:

R
a
ti
o
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

th
a
t 
w

e
re

 f
ro

m
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s

2
.1

9
1
.4

1
.6

1
.2

5
2
.7

0
6
/0

7
 1

/5
5
 0

7
/0

8
 Q

1
 2

/5
1
 -

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

s

2
8
 o

f 
5
8



S
ta

y
in

g
 S

a
fe

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
n

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 c

o
d

e
s

0
5
/0

6

O
u

tt
u

rn

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

d
a
ta

 A
v
. 
0
5
/0

6

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r

d
a
ta

 0
5
/0

6

0
6
/0

7
 O

u
tt

u
rn

0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

0
7
/0

8
 O

u
tt

u
rn

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
A

G
 v

 

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

2
0
4
1
S

C
:

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 o

f 
p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 

ra
c
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

N
o

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

A
P

A
 2

0
0
7

2
 &

 2
N

/A
N

o
 D

a
ta

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
g
re

e
d

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 b
e
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
a
ta

 M
a
rc

h
 0

8

2
0
4
6
S

C
: 

A
re

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

[l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r]

 c
h
ild

re
n
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n
 y

o
u
r 

a
re

a
 b

y
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
?

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
H

S
C

B
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 a
g
re

e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 
 N

e
x
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 6

th
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 t
h
e
n
 b

e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
.

2
0
2
9
S

C
/K

IG
S

 C
H

0
4
: 

F
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
re

g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
s
t 
m

a
rc

h

7
9
.2

0
%

8
6
.3

%
8
5
.1

%
8
5
.5

0
%

8
4
.2

%

A
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
th

ly
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
re

 g
ro

u
p
s
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
  
d
e
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

 

m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 l
e
v
e
l 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
re

 r
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 H

S
C

B
.

2
0
3
7
S

C
/ 
K

IG
S

 C
H

1
2
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 s
4
7
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 l
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
it
ia

l 
c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 h
e
ld

 w
it
h
in

 1
5
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s

1
8
%

2
7
.2

%
T

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
n
g
 t
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

re
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

7
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 I
C

P
C

.
�

2
0
6
6
S

C
: 
E

th
n
ic

it
y
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 t
h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 
a
 c

h
ild

 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 (

w
h
it
e
, 
m

ix
e
d
 e

th
n
ic

 o
ri
g
in

, 
A

s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
, 
a
n
d
 B

la
c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
)

S
e
e
 n

o
te

S
e
e
 b

e
lo

w
S

e
e
 b

e
lo

w
S

e
e
 B

e
lo

w

2
0
6
6
S

C
 (

K
IG

S
 C

H
1
2
1
):

 P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

w
h
o
 a

re
 w

h
it
e

9
8
.2

%
9
6
.1

%

T
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
/p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
y
 o

f 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

to
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ri
s
e
. 
 D

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

iz
e
 a

n
d
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
ty

 a
 n

o
te

 o
f 
c
a
u
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
. 

2
0
6
6
S

C
 (

K
IG

S
 C

H
1
2
2
):

 P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

w
h
o
 a

re
 o

f 
m

ix
e
d
 e

th
n
ic

 o
ri
g
in

1
.8

%
3
.9

%
T

h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
/p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
y
 a

n
d
 e

th
n
ic

it
y
 o

f 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 
 A

c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
f 
th

e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

2
0
6
6
S

C
 (

K
IG

S
 C

H
1
2
3
):

 P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

w
h
o
 a

re
 A

s
ia

n
 o

r 
B

ri
ti
s
h
 A

s
ia

n
0
%

0
%

T
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
/p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
y
 a

n
d
 e

th
n
ic

it
y
 o

f 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 
 A

c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
f 
th

e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

2
0
6
6
S

C
 (

K
IG

S
 C

H
1
2
4
):

 P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

w
h
o
 a

re
 b

la
c
k
 o

r 
b
la

c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

0
%

0
%

T
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
/p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
y
 a

n
d
 e

th
n
ic

it
y
 o

f 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 
 A

c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
f 
th

e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

2
0
6
9
S

C
:

T
h
e
 r

a
ti
o
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft
e
r 

th
a
t 
w

e
re

 f
ro

m
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 

fr
o
m

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s

1
.6

1
.6

C
h
ild

re
n
 f
ro

m
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 o

v
e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 v

e
ry

 s
m

a
ll 

e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

�

2
9
 o

f 
5
8



Back to Contents page

Headlines - Enjoy & Achieve

There are 28 indicator outcomes recorded.

Direction of travel results are as follows:

3 Green �

23 Amber 

2 Red 

NB: Direction of travel is based on previous years' performance trends and 

anticipated performance for 2007/08.

Summary

1.  The majority of the indicators in this outcome area relate to exam results and the 

unvalidated results for the last academic year will not be available until September 

(and will be reported in the Quarter 2 Digest).

2. There is continuing good performance in relation to the provision of SEN 

statements.

3. There is a positive analysis/progress statement provided for absenteeism (BVPI 

45 and 46), which was an issue arising from the last Director’s performance review 

in April 2007.

4. The target for the percentage of LAC who sat at least 1 GCSE equivalent exam 

(3071SC/ DIS 1406) is unlikely to be met as there is an unusually high number of 

children whose statement of needs mean that they will not be able to sit for GCSE

The RAG rating used is based on the following:

Green  – on target/met target

Amber – some progress/data not yet available so

not possible to determine trend

Red  – not on target

30 of 58



Education

GCSE No. in GCSE

Cohort 5+ A* - C

Herefordshire L 2041 61.8%

Excellence

Cluster 48.8%

National 58.5%

Statistical

neighbours Unknown

Outcome 3 - Enjoy & Achieve

BVPI 38 is the percentage of 15 year old pupils in schools maintained by the Local Education 

Authority achieving 5 or more GCSEs at grades A*-C or equivalent.

GCSE 5 + A* - C  Performance over time

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

55%

60%

65%

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Years

%
 5

 +
 A

* 
- 

C
 

HEREFORDSHIRE LA Excellence Cluster National

Progress will be updated when unvalidated results (for 2007) are received in September

Please click here for information on Statistical neighbours.

These figures relate to exams taken in June 2006 and results verified by the DfES in January 2007.

31 of 58



GCSE
No. in 

cohort

GCSE 5 

A*-G

2006 Cohort 5+ A* - C

Herefordshire

LEA 2041 92.8%

Excellence

Cluster 91.5%

National 89.2%

Statistical

neighbours Unknown

BVPI 39/LAA 16/HCS 30  is the percentage of 15 year old pupils in schools maintained by the 

Local Education Authority achieving 5 or more GCSEs at grades A*-G or equivalent including 

English and Mathematics.

GCSE 5 + A* - G  Performance over time

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006Years

%
 5

 +
 A

* 
- 

G
 

HEREFORDSHIRE LA Excellence Cluster National

Progress will be updated when unvalidated results (for 2007) are received in September

32 of 58



Key Stage 2 No. in % Level 4

Cohort

Herefordshire

LEA 1860 75.5%

Excellence

Cluster 70.0%

National 76.0%

Statistical

neighbours 76.20%

BVPI 40 is the percentage of pupils in schools maintained by the LEA achieving Level 

4 or above in Key Stage 2 Mathematics test.

Key Stage 2 Maths Performance over time

62%

64%

66%

68%

70%

72%

74%

76%

78%

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Years

%
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
 a

n
d

 a
b

o
v
e

Herefordshire LEA Excellence Cluster National Statistical neighbours

Progress will be updated when unvalidated results (for 2007) are received in September

33 of 58



Key Stage 2
No. in 

cohort % Level 4

2006 Cohort 5+ A* - C

Herefordshire

LEA 1860 80.6%

Excellence

Cluster 75.2%

National 79.0%

Statistical

neighbours 80.00%

BVPI 41 is the percentage of pupils in schools maintained by the LEA achieving Level 4 or above in Key 

Stage 2 English test.

Key Stage 2 English Performance over time

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Years

%
 L

e
v

e
l 

4
 a

n
d

 a
b

o
v

e

Herefordshire LEA Excellence Cluster National Statistical neighbours

Progress will be updated when unvalidated results (for 2007) are received in September

34 of 58



Key Stage 3
No. in % Level 5

Cohort

Herefordshire

LEA 2032 76.5%

Excellence

Cluster 62.9%

National 73.0%

Statistical

neighbours 74.60%

BVPI 181a is the percentage of 14 year old pupils in schools maintained by the LEA achieving 

Level 5 or above in the Key Stage 3 test in English.

Key Stage 3 English Performance over time

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Years

%
 L

e
v

e
l 
5

 a
n

d
 a

b
o

v
e

HEREFORDSHIRE LEA Excellence Cluster National Statistical neighbours

Progress will be updated when unvalidated results (for 2007) are received in September

35 of 58



Key Stage 3
No. in 

cohort % Level 5

2006 Cohort

Herefordshire

LEA 2032 79.8%

Excellence

Cluster 71.2%

National 77.0%

Statistical

neighbours 79.80%

BVPI 181b is the percentage of 14 year old pupils in schools maintained by the LEA achieving 

Level 5 or above in the Key Stage 3 test in Mathematics.

Key Stage 3 Maths Performance over time

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Years

%
 L

e
v

e
l 
5

 a
n

d
 a

b
o

v
e

HEREFORDSHIRE LEA Excellence Cluster National Statistical neighbours

Progress will be updated when unvalidated results (for 2007) are received in September

36 of 58



Key Stage 3 No. in % Level 5

Cohort

Herefordshire

LEA 2032 77.5%

Excellence

Cluster 68.0%

National 72.0%

Statistical

neighbours 76.60%

BVPI 181c is the percentage of 14 year old pupils in schools maintained by the LEA 

achieving Level 5 or above in the Key Stage 3 test in Science.

Key Stage 3 Science Performance over time

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Years

%
 L

e
v

e
l 
5

 a
n

d
 a

b
o

v
e

HEREFORDSHIRE LEA Excellence Cluster National Statistical neighbours

Progress will be updated when unvalidated results (for 2007) are received in September

37 of 58



See

Bands for 

more info

2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08

Outturn
Herefordshire 6.5 12.4 12.6 9.2 10.5 9.0 N/A

IPF Data 12.8 12.2 11.4 11.0

England 11.9 12.1 12.2 12.2

PAF CF/C24: Children looked after absent from school [joint working]

PAF C24: Children looked after absent from school.

6.5

12.4 12.6

9.2

0

10.5 9.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06  2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn

Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF C24/3074 SC/LAA 7/HCS 35a. This is a measure of the percentage of looked after children 

who have missed 25 days or more of school in the last year.  The outturn is influenced by the small 

size of the cohorts involved.

Data is unavailable for this PI for Quarter 1 07/08 - Data will be available at Quarter 3 07/08.

This target remains a challenge due to the arbitrary number of days selected. The prognosis for this 

year's outturn is not good. Again, around 12 children are currently in the missed more than 25 days 

cohort. Data collected bi weekly and contact maintained with key  individuals when concerns arise.

38 of 58



See

Bands for 

more info

2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08

Outturn
Herefordshire 52 68 92 77 90 N/A

IPF Data 56 55 58

England 50 51 53

PAF CF/A2: The percentage of young people with at least 1 GCSE at Grade A* - G or

PAF A2: The percentage of young people leaving care aged 16 or over with at least 1 GCSE at Grade A* - G or 

GNVQ (BVPI 50).

52

68

92

77

90

0
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF A2/3072 SC/BVPI 50 The percentage of Looked After Children who left care in the year (and 

were aged 16 plus) who achieved at least one GCSE A*-C. 

Data is unavailable for this PI for Quarter 1 07/08 - Data is collected on an annual basis and will be 

available at Year End.

This year, we do not anticipate doing quite as well as last year. Last year, the results were 

our best ever, despite not appearing in the information produced by the DfES. However, 

we do expect 4 young people to meet the 5 A*-C target. Regular school visits monitor 

progress. Targeted support deployed where needed.

39 of 58



200-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06  2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08

Outturn
Herefordshire 14 14 12 17

IPF Data 23

England 13

PAF CF/C69: Distance children newly looked after are placed from home

PAF CF/C69: Distance children newly looked after are placed from home.

14 14

12

17

0

5

10

15

20

25

200-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06  2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF C69/3085 SC. This PI measures the percentage of children newly looked after during the year, 

and still looked after at year end who were placed more than 20 miles from their home address from 

which first placed.  A low outturn is most desirable.  The outturn for Q1 07/08 (17%) is higher than 

that for 06/07 and adrift of target for 06/07 (12%) by 5%.  There have been no bandings published for 

this indicator - Herefordshire's position does not compare favourably against 05/06 statistical 

neighbours or England Av.

No comparative information yet available.

40 of 58



SEN

No Of Weeks 

Taken To Issue 

Proposed

Statement

Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

18 1 2 1 1

17 1 1 2 3 3 8 5

16 1 1 1

15 1

14 1 1

13 2

12 1 1

11 1

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Total No Of 

Proposed

Statements

Issued

2 4 2 2 3 0 1 3 3 3 8 8

% of Statements 

produced under 

18 weeks

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Back to Contents page

12 Months July 2006 - June 2007

�

�

BVPI 43a is the percentage of proposed Statements of Special Educational Need issued by the Local Authority in a 

financial year and prepared within 18 weeks excluding exceptions. The target for 2007-08 was 92%. The first quarter 

position is that 100% of all proposed Statements of Special Educational Need were prepared within 18 weeks 

excluding exceptions. Excellent performance supported by regular monthly monitoring and data quality checks.

Chart to show the percentage of Proposed Statements issued under 18 

weeks, July 2006 - June 2007

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

J
u

l

A
u

g

S
e

p
t

O
c
t

N
o

v

D
e

c

J
a

n

F
e

b

M
a

r

A
p

r

M
a

y
 

J
u

n
e

Months

%
 o

f 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

 w
e

e
k

s

% of Statements produced under 18
weeks

Target of 92%

BVPI 43b is the percentage of proposed Statements of Special Educational Need issued by the Local Authority in a 

financial year and prepared within 18 weeks including exceptions. Of the 19 statutory assessments completed in Quarter 1 

07/08, none were subject to statutory  exceptions 

Our position at 100% is the same as at the 1st quarter in 06/07 but I feel it is relevant to add a comment concerning the difference

in numbers of statutory assessments of SEN due for completion in the different years. The higher the numbers, the greater risk of

one missing a deadline and affecting a performance figure for the whole year. The SEN Team put this statutory assessment 

deadline as a top priority. The process also relies on the efficiency of a range of other services in the directorate and the PCT in 

providing reports in a timely fashion and higher numbers place greater demands on them. 

The difference in numbers is not necessarily indicative of a problem, it can simply be a chance effect of the timing of early 

identification/diagnosis of significant disability and other such factors affecting bunching and increased demand. I am of course

maintaining a close eye on the situation and the SEN has clearly managed the increased workload this quarter. 

19 statutory assessments were due for completion in the period 1st June - 30th June 2007 and 19 proposed statements were 

issued, all within the 18 week deadline. During Quarter 1 06/07 only 4 statutory assessments were due for completion.

41 of 58



42 of 58



O
th

e
r 

P
Is

 -
 E

n
jo

y
 a

n
d

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

E
n

jo
y
 &

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
n

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 c

o
d

e
s

0
5
/0

6

O
u

tt
u

rn

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

d
a
ta

 A
v
. 
0
5
/0

6

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r

d
a
ta

 0
5
/0

6

0
6
/0

7
 O

u
tt

u
rn

0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

0
7
/0

8
 O

u
tt

u
rn

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
A

G
 v

 

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

H
C

S
 3

1
: 

%
 o

f 
1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 L

E
A

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 A

*-
C

 o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
In

c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
.

4
5
.5

%
4
5
.8

%
4
6
.6

%
4
8
.2

%
 E

x
a
m

s
 

ta
k
e
n

 J
u

n
e
 0

6
N

o
 D

a
ta

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

ft
e
r 

u
n
v
a
lid

a
te

d
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

B
V

P
I4

3
B

:
%

 o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
S

E
N

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 a

 f
in

.y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 1
8
 w

e
e
k
s
 

in
c
l 
e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s

9
0
%

N
/A

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

O
f 
th

e
 1

9
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 0

7
/0

8
 n

o
n
e
 w

e
re

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

s
ta

tu
to

ry
  
e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 

�

B
V

P
I 
4
5
/H

C
S

3
4
: 

%
 o

f 
h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
o
ta

l 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

E
A

7
.6

1
%

(r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 

0
4
/0

5
 A

c
 

Y
e
a
r)

7
.9

%
6
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

T
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 s

e
t 
s
e
v
e
ra

l 
y
e
a
rs

 a
g
o
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

A
A

. 
It
 i
s
 a

n
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 s

e
t 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t.
 I
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 a
n
d
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

n
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/8

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 W

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

w
a
y
 o

n
 a

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
. 
R

e
lia

b
le

 a
n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 d
a
ta

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

B
V

P
I 
4
6
/ 
H

C
S

 3
3
: 
%

 o
f 
h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
o
ta

l 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

E
A

5
.0

5
%

(r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 

0
4
/0

5
 A

c
 

Y
e
a
r)

5
.6

7
%

4
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

T
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 s

e
t 
s
e
v
e
ra

l 
y
e
a
rs

 a
g
o
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

A
A

. 
It
 i
s
 a

n
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 s

e
t 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t.
 I
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 a
n
d
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

n
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/8

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 W

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

w
a
y
 o

n
 a

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
. 
R

e
lia

b
le

 a
n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 d
a
ta

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

B
V

P
I 
1
8
1
D

: 
%

 o
f 
1
4
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

E
A

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

L
e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K

S
 3

 t
e
s
t 
in

 I
C

T
.

7
1
.6

0
%

7
4
%

8
4
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

ft
e
r 

u
n
v
a
lid

a
te

d
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

B
V

P
I 
1
9
4
A

: 
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
1
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

L
e
v
e
l 
5
 i
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 t
e
s
t 
in

 E
n
g
lis

h
.

2
8
%

3
1
%

3
3
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

ft
e
r 

u
n
v
a
lid

a
te

d
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

B
V

P
I 
1
9
4
B

: 
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
1
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g

L
e
v
e
l 
5
 i
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 t
e
s
t 
in

 M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
.

3
3
%

3
0
.2

%
3
5
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

ft
e
r 

u
n
v
a
lid

a
te

d
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

H
C

S
 2

2
B

: 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
s
 f
o
r 

te
e
n
a
g
e
rs

 -
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 %

 o
f 
1
1
-1

5
.

N
/A

N
/A

?
N

o
 D

a
ta

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

 w
h
e
re

 P
C

T
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

is
 R

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

b
e
in

g
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y

4
3
 o

f 
5
8



E
n

jo
y
 &

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
n

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 c

o
d

e
s

0
5
/0

6

O
u

tt
u

rn

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

d
a
ta

 A
v
. 
0
5
/0

6

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r

d
a
ta

 0
5
/0

6

0
6
/0

7
 O

u
tt

u
rn

0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

0
7
/0

8
 O

u
tt

u
rn

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
A

G
 v

 

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

H
C

S
3
5
B

:
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
a
lf
-d

a
y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 

a
s
%

 o
f 
to

ta
l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
y
 L

A
C

.

4
.0

2
%

(r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 

0
4
/0

5
 A

c
 

Y
e
a
r)

3
.4

9
%

4
.2

5
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

T
h
is

 i
s
 w

e
ll 

o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
v
in

g
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 o

u
r 

p
re

d
ic

te
d
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 l
a
s
t 
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 D
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 b

i 

w
e
e
k
ly

 b
u
t 
o
n
ly

 c
o
lla

te
d
  
a
n
n
u
a
lly

.

H
C

S
 3

5
C

: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
a
lf
-d

a
y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
y
 L

A
C

.

8
.5

1
%

(r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 

0
4
/0

5
 A

c
 

Y
e
a
r)

5
%

7
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

T
h
is

 i
s
 w

e
ll 

o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
v
in

g
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 o

u
r 

p
re

d
ic

te
d
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 l
a
s
t 
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 D
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 b

i 

w
e
e
k
ly

 b
u
t 
o
n
ly

 c
o
lla

te
d
  
a
n
n
u
a
lly

.

H
C

S
 6

6
: 

%
 o

f 
3
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

 g
o
o
d
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 f
re

e
 e

a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 p

la
c
e
.

8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

N
/A

 -
 s

e
e
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

O
u
tt
u
rn

 a
lw

a
y
s
 8

5
%

L
is

ts
 o

f 
e
lig

ib
le

 C
h
ild

re
n
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
 f
ro

m
 C

h
ild

 H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 p

a
c
k
s
 s

e
n
t 
to

 p
a
re

n
ts

 a
s
 d

ir
e
c
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t

O
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 N

E
F

 p
la

c
e
s
 i
n
c
 a

t 
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s

L
e
a
fl
e
ts

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 v

ia
 n

o
rm

a
l 
C

IS
 o

u
tl
e
ts

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

A
ll 

s
e
tt
in

g
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 N

E
F

A
ll 

p
a
re

n
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 o
ff
e
re

d
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
N

E
F

 p
la

c
e
s
 i
f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

3

�

H
C

S
 6

0
A

: 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
L
if
e
 -

 A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

te
e
n
a
g
e
rs

 C
P

.
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
-3

2
p

p
N

o
 D

a
ta

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
O

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 P

la
n
 s

ta
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

n
 "

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
4
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 b

y
 2

0
1
0
".

 T
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

u
p
 t
o
  
2
0
1
0
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

c
la

ri
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

3
0
7
3
S

C
/D

IS
 1

4
0
3
: 
%

 o
f 
Y

P
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 a
t 
1
6
 o

r 
o
v
e
r 

w
it
h
 

5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 A

*-
 C

 o
r 

a
 G

N
V

Q
8
.3

%
8
.5

%
9
.5

%
5
.9

0
%

1
0
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

It
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 p

re
d
ic

t 
a
n
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 f
o
r 

th
is

 g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 -
 i
t 
is

 o
n
ly

 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 p

re
d
ic

t 
fo

r 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 t
u
rn

 1
8
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

3
0
7
1
S

C
/ 
D

IS
 1

4
0
6
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

w
h
o
 s

a
t 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 G

C
S

E
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
e
x
a
m

 
8
4
.2

%
6
2
.9

%
6
7
.3

%
8
4
.6

%
8
5
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

T
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 u

n
u
s
u
a
lly

 h
ig

h
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
s
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
e
d
s
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

it
 f
o
r 

G
C

S
E

H
C

 9
7
e
: 

T
h
e
 a

d
u
lt
 p

u
b
lic

s
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 P
R

O
V

IS
IO

N
+

1
5
p

p
N

o
 D

a
ta

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
O

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 P

la
n
 s

ta
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

n
 "

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
4
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 b

y
 2

0
1
0
".

 T
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

u
p
 t
o
  
2
0
1
0
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

c
la

ri
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

H
C

 9
1
: 

%
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 a

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

3
0
8
0
Y

J
:
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
T

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
–
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
e
d
 j
u
v
e
n
ile

s
 i
n
 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
 E

T
E

7
5
%

6
8
.7

%
7
1
.3

%
6
2
.4

%
N

o
 D

a
ta

4
4
 o

f 
5
8



Back to Contents page

Headlines - Make A Positive Contribution

There are 10 indicator outcomes recorded.

Direction of travel results are as follows:

0 Green �

6 Amber 

4 Red 

NB: Direction of travel is based on previous years' performance trends and 

anticipated performance for 2007/08.

Summary

1. Performance in relation to the two youth service indicators (BVPI 221a and b) is 

down on last year and below national standards.  In relation to BVPI 221a, it is 

also just below local targets for this work.

2. The participation of LAC in reviews (PAF CF/63) is just below target.

The RAG rating used is based on the following:

Green  – on target/met target

Amber  – some progress/data not yet available 

so not possible to determine trend

Red  – not on target

45 of 58



Offending PAF C18

See

Bands for 

more info

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 2.1 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.5 2.5 N/A

IPF Data 3.2 3.3 3.6 3.5

England 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.8

Outcome 4 - Make A Positive Contribution

PAF CF/C18: Final warnings, reprimands and convictions of children looked after

PAF C18: Final warnings, reprimands and convictions of children looked after.

2.1 2.1

2.3
2.5

0

2.6

2.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

R
a
ti

o
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF C18/4015 SC. This PI focuses on looked after children with final warnings, reprimands 

and convictions in the year.  The PAF calculation is a ratio of looked after children offending 

against the percentage of young people, aged 10 to 18, offending in the area.

Data is unavailable for this PI for Quarter 1 07/08 - Data available for Quarter 3 07/08.

46 of 58



See

Bands for 

more info

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 88 94 95 97 94

IPF Data 85 84

England 83 83

Back to Contents page

�

PAF CF/C63: Participation in reviews

PAF C63: Participation in reviews.

88

94

97

94
95

75

80

85

90

95

100

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn
Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF C63/4016 SC. This is the percentage of Looked After Children aged four and over, who 

communicated their views in a review.  The indicator is a count of children, not reviews - if a 

child has not participated in one of their reviews (as per valid DfES coding) they will not count 

in this PI.  Q1 07/08 performance has decreased 1% against 06/07(95%) - currently at 94%. 

This means that Herefordshire is currently short of 07/08 target by 3% (97%) and placed in a 

four blob PAF banding ahead of statistical neighbours.

This continues to be a  priority.  The direction of travel is to increase the current statistical 

performance through constant monitoring by the Independent Reviewing Officers and the 

work with VOICES, which considers participation for LAC. 

47 of 58



O
th

e
r 

P
Is

 -
 M

a
k
in

g
 a

 P
o

s
it

iv
e
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

M
a
k
e
 a

 P
o

s
it

iv
e
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
n

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 c

o
d

e
s

0
5
/0

6

O
u

tt
u

rn

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

d
a
ta

 A
v
. 
0
5
/0

6

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r

d
a
ta

 0
5
/0

6

0
6
/0

7
 O

u
tt

u
rn

0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

0
7
/0

8
 O

u
tt

u
rn

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
A

G
 v

 

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

B
V

P
I 
2
2
1
A

: 
Y

o
u
th

 W
o
rk

 –
 %

 o
f 
Y

P
 a

g
e
d
 1

3
-1

9
 g

a
in

in
g
 a

 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 %

 o
f 
Y

P
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

4
6
.7

%
 5

8
.2

%
6
0
%

3
5
.1

0
%

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 o

n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 b

e
lo

w
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 j
u
s
t 
b
e
lo

w
 l
o
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

. 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
it
ia

te
d
.

B
V

P
I 
2
2
1
B

: 
Y

o
u
th

 W
o
rk

 –
 %

 o
f 
Y

P
 a

g
e
d
 1

3
-1

9
 g

a
in

in
g
 a

n
 

a
c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 %

 o
f 
Y

P
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

3
2
.3

0
%

3
3
.4

%
3
0
%

2
0
.8

0
%

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 o

n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

(w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l)
 a

n
d
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 b
u
t 

a
b
o
v
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

.

H
C

9
0
: 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 A

d
u
lt
s
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n

-5
p

p
N

o
 D

a
ta

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
O

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 P

la
n
 s

ta
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

n
 "

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
4
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 b

y
 2

0
1
0
".

 T
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

u
p
 t
o
  
2
0
1
0
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

c
la

ri
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

H
C

S
8
6
:

%
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th

a
t 
p
a
re

n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
re

a
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

H
C

S
3
8
:

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
1
3
 -

 1
8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th

e
y
 c

a
n
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

2
0
0
7
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 S

e
p
t 
0
7
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e

H
C

S
 6

9
: 

%
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

d
o
e
s
 e

n
o
u
g
h
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
.

1
9
.2

%
 0

4
/0

5
1
9
.2

%
 i
n

 2
0
0
5
 

Y
o

u
th

 S
u

rv
e
y
 

2
8
%

 b
y
 

2
0
0
8

N
o
 D

a
ta

2
0
0
7
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 S

e
p
t 
0
7
.

H
C

S
 3

7
: 

%
 o

f 
C

Y
P

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
.

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

W
o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
ir
s
t 
n
e
tw

o
rk

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 c

a
lle

d
 f
o
r 

2
6
th

 J
u
ly

2
0
6
1
Y

J
/H

C
S

 3
6
: 
R

e
c
id

iv
is

m
: 
T

h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
re

-o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 .

5
4
%

5
6
.4

%
5
8
.8

%
5
0
%

4
7
.5

%
N

o
 D

a
ta

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 a

s
 f
o
llo

w
s
 (

n
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
s
e
 a

s
 o

f 
y
e
t)

: 
1
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

P
re

v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 D

e
te

r 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
; 
2
. 
In

tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
re

-o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
; 
3
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 Y

o
s
; 
4
. 
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 R

e
d
u
c
in

g
 R

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 g

ro
u
p
 (

Y
o
s
) 

4
8
 o

f 
5
8



Back to Contents page

Headlines - Achieve Economic well-being

There are 6 indicator outcomes recorded.

Direction of Travel results are as follows:

0 Green �

3 Amber 

2 Red 

1 N/A

NB: Direction of travel is based on previous years' performance trends and 

anticipated performance for 2007/08.

Summary

1. Performance in relation to the percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, 

employment or training is not on target but it is not clear from the analysis/progress 

statement what action is being taken

The RAG rating used is based on the following:

Green  – on target/met target

Amber – some progress/data not yet available so

not possible to determine trend

Red  – not on target

49 of 58



Doing Now

See

Bands for 

more info

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 0.92 0.96 1.25 0.99 N/A

IPF Data 0.66 0.70

England 0.72 0.76

Back to Contents page

PAF CF/A4: Employment, education and training for care leavers [joint 

working] (BVPI 161) - Calculated Annually

Outcome 5 - Achieve Economic Well-Being

PAF A4: Employment, education and training for care leavers (BVPI 161).

0.92
0.96

1.25

0.99

0
0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn

Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

R
a
ti

o
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF A4/5022 SC/BVPI 161. This PI is the ratio of the education, employment & training of 

care leavers on their 19th birthday against all children in the area who are in EET.

Data is unavailable for this PI for Quarter 1 07/08 - Data is collected on an annual basis and 

will be available at Year End.

50 of 58



O
th

e
r 

P
Is

 -
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 W
e
ll

-B
e
in

g

A
c

h
ie

v
e

 E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 W

e
ll

-B
e

in
g

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
n

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 c

o
d

e
s

0
5
/0

6

O
u

tt
u

rn

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

d
a
ta

 A
v
. 
0
5
/0

6

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r

d
a
ta

 0
5
/0

6

0
6
/0

7
 O

u
tt

u
rn

0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

0
7
/0

8
 O

u
tt

u
rn

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
A

G
 v

 

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

5
0
2
5
S

C
/P

A
F

 C
F

/E
6
7
: 
C

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
.

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

C
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
C

IN
 C

e
n
s
u
s
. 
 N

e
x
t 
c
e
n
s
u
s
 0

8
/0

9
 p

o
s
s
ib

ly
?

N
/A

H
C

S
4
0
:

%
 o

f 
1
6
-1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 N

O
T

 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
.

6
.1

%
4
.3

%
5
.3

0
%

5
.7

3
%

S
ta

rt
in

g
 t
o
 s

e
e
 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 C

o
u
rs

e
s
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 h

e
lp

H
C

S
 4

1
: 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
L
A

C
 w

h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
.

1
6
/1

9
1
4
/1

4
N

o
 D

a
ta

5
0
2
6
S

C
:

D
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
 w

h
a
t 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

g
e
d
 1

4
 +

 h
a
d
 a

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
ir
 

m
o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 A

d
u
lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

U
p
 t
o
 5

0
%

u
p

 t
o

 9
0
%

6
6
.6

7
%

U
p
 t
o
 7

5
%

S
in

c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
ro

u
n
d
 o

f 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 5

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 m

o
v
e
d
 o

n
 i
n
to

 a
d
u
lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

ll 
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
d
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
O

n
e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f
o
r 

a
 1

7
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 a
s
 s

o
 f
a
r 

th
e
 

fa
m

ily
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
g
iv

e
n
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t 
fo

r 
o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
ta

c
te

d
. 
A

ll 
o
th

e
r 

1
7
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 h

a
v
e
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
Y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 L

A
C

 a
n
d
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
7
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

 h
a
v
e
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
a
c
h
in

g
 t
h
e
 

1
4
 +

 a
g
e
 g

ro
u
p
 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 T
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
th

e
 f
ig

u
re

 h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

5
0
3
7
S

C
:

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 a
t 
a
g
e
 1

9
 w

h
o
 a

re
 

liv
in

g
 i
n
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

a
s
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il)

.
8
9
.5

%
8
9
.1

%
8
8
.5

%
1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

5
1
 o

f 
5
8



Back to Contents page

Headlines - Service Management

There are 22 indicator outcomes recorded.

Direction of Travel results are as follows:

4 Green �

15 Amber 

1 Red 

2 N/A

NB: Direction of travel is based on previous years' performance trends and 

anticipated performance for 2007/08.

Summary

1.  The bulk of the indicators in this outcome area relate to finance and no data was 

available for the first quarter.

2.  Recruitment of social workers continues to be an issue

The RAG rating used is based on the following:

Green  – on target/met target

Amber – some progress/data not yet available so 

not possible to determine trend

Red  – not on target

52 of 58



Finance

PAF CF/B8: Cost of services for children looked after (BVPI 51)
See

Bands for 

more info

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 417 454 522 584 735 619 N/A

IPF Data 548 611 667 732

England 576 630 684 728

Service Management

PAF CF/B8: Cost of services for children looked after (BVPI 51).

417

454

522

584

735

619

0
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn

Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

£
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF B8/6024SC.This PI calculates the gross weekly expenditure for looked after children.

Data is unavailable for this PI for Quarter 1 07/08 - Data available for Quarter 2 07/08.

Following the split from Adult Social Care it has been necessary to set up a recording tool - 

currently working on spreadsheet to enable data to be available quarterly.

53 of 58



See

Bands for 

more info

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 35 38 37 35 29 35 N/A

IPF Data 34 36 37 38

England 38 38 39 39

PAF CF/E44: Relative spend on family support

PAF CF/E44: Relative spend on family support.

35

38
37

35

29

35

0
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

Outturn
Year

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF E44/6010SC. This PI measures the relative spend on family support.

Data is unavailable for this PI for Quarter 1 07/08 - Data available for Quarter 2 07/08.

Following the split from Adult Social Care it has been necessary to set up a recording tool - 

currently working on spreadsheet to enable data to be available quarterly.

54 of 58



See

Bands for 

more info

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
2007-08

Plan

Q1. 2007-

08 Outturn

Herefordshire 6.7 11.6 13.5 17.2 14 N/A

IPF Data 9.8 10.8 14.5

England 9.9 11.2 14.4

Back to Contents page

PAF MR/D74: Practice learning

PAF MR/D74: Practice learning.

6.7

11.6

13.5

17.2

14

0
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Plan Q1. 2007-08

OutturnYear

O
u

tt
u

rn
 (

%
)

Herefordshire

IPF Data

England

PAF D74/6044SC. This is a gauge of the number of assessed social work practice learning days 

per whole time equivalent social worker.

Data is unavailable for this PI for Quarter 1 07/08 - Data available for Quarter 2 07/08.

There is no further data to report until the new academic year I.e. reporting 6 monthly in April and 

October. A position statement has been delivered to the Safeguarding and Assessment team. 

Work is ongoing to: identify and develop new practice learning opportunities in the independent 

children's sector and within Integrated Services and Inclusion; develop initiatives with 2 new 

university programmes to provide an agreed number of placements. 

55 of 58



O
th

e
r 

P
Is

 -
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
n

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 c

o
d

e
s

0
5
/0

6

O
u

tt
u

rn

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

d
a
ta

 A
v
. 
0
5
/0

6

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r

d
a
ta

 0
5
/0

6

0
6
/0

7
 O

u
tt

u
rn

0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

0
7
/0

8
 O

u
tt

u
rn

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
A

G
 v

 

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

B
V

P
I 
2
2
2
A

: 
%

 o
f 
e
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 o

r 
p
a
rt

-f
u
n
d
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
it
h
 a

 q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
L
e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 

a
b
o
v
e
.

1
4
.9

7
%

2
9
.2

4
%

3
4
.9

%
N

o
 D

a
ta

D
a
ta

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 v

ia
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 o

f 
s
e
tt
in

g
s
 u

n
ti
l 
w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 b
y
 

p
u
tt
in

g
 i
n
to

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

 m
e
th

o
d
 o

f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 c

o
lla

ti
o
n
 (

v
ia

 M
e
n
to

rs
/D

e
v
 T

e
a
m

 e
tc

.)
  
A

ll 
E

Y
 L

e
a
d
e
r s

in
 t
h
e
 P

V
 S

e
c
to

r 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 E

Y
E

S
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

h
e
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 d

e
g
re

e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 E

Y
E

S
 a

n
d
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
 g

ra
d
u
a
te

 l
e
v
e
l 
le

a
d
e
rs

B
V

P
I 
2
2
2
B

: 
 %

 o
f 
e
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
 g

ra
d
u
a
te

 o
r 

p
o
s
t-

g
ra

d
u
a
te

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n
 

te
a
c
h
in

g
 o

r 
c
h
ild

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

A
ll 

e
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
p
u
t 
fr

o
m

 s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
 g

ra
d
u
a
te

 o
r 

p
o
s
t-

g
ra

d
u
a
te

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n
 

te
a
c
h
in

g
 o

r 
c
h
ild

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  
D

a
ta

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 v

ia
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 o

f 
s
e
tt
in

g
s
 u

n
ti
l 

w
e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 b
y
 p

u
tt
in

g
 i
n
to

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

 m
e
th

o
d
 o

f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 c

o
lla

ti
o
n
 (

v
ia

 

M
e
n
to

rs
/D

e
v
 T

e
a
m

 e
tc

.)

6
0
1
1
S

C
/D

IS
 3

1
1
8
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
S

S
D

 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 

s
ta

ff
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 t
h
a
t 
le

ft
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

1
3
%

1
1
.5

%
1
0
.6

%
1
3
.8

%
1
1
%

1
8
.2

%

1
9
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 s

ta
ff
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 l
e
ft
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

s
t 
J
u
ly

 2
0
0
6
 a

n
d
 3

0
th

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
. 
1
0
 S

o
c
ia

l 

W
o
rk

e
rs

, 
1
 T

e
a
m

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r,

 2
 A

ft
e
rc

a
re

 W
o
rk

e
rs

, 
3
 F

a
m

ily
 C

e
n
tr

e
 W

o
rk

e
rs

, 
1
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 W

e
lf
a
re

 

O
ff
ic

e
r,

 1
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 &

 R
e
v
ie

w
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r.

 H
ig

h
 t
u
rn

o
v
e
r 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

re
a
s
o
n
s
; 
re

ti
re

m
e
n
t,
 r

e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
, 
c
a
re

e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 i
ll 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

re
ti
re

m
e
n
t,
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

p
o
s
t 
w

it
h
in

 H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 s

tu
d
ie

s
, 
to

 s
e
t 
u
p
 

p
ri
v
a
te

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
. 
M

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
n
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

tu
rn

o
v
e
r 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
n
o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

u
n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 t
re

n
d
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

le
a
v
in

g
 a

re
 a

g
a
in

 v
a
ri
e
d
. 
2
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 l
e
ft
 i
n
 F

o
s
te

ri
n
g
, 
1
 

b
y
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 o

f 
re

ti
re

m
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

to
 s

e
t 
u
p
 a

 p
ri
v
a
te

 f
o
s
te

ri
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 
3
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rl
e
rs

 l
e
ft
 i
n
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 T

e
a
m

; 
1
 l
e
ft
 f
o
r 

tr
a
v
e
lli

n
g
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 r

e
tu

rn
 t
o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
1
 

le
ft
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 a
lt
o
g
e
th

e
r,

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

w
a
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 i
ll 

h
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t.
 4

 S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 l
e
ft
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 T

e
a
m

s
; 
1
 l
e
ft
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

it
h
 s

tu
d
ie

s
, 
2
 r

e
lo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

s
 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
, 
1
 d

id
 n

o
t 
re

tu
rn

 f
ro

m
 c

a
re

e
r 

b
re

a
k
. 
1
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

le
ft
 i
n
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
&

 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 a

 p
o
s
t 
in

 a
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

.

6
0
1
2
S

C
/D

IS
 3

1
1
9
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
S

S
D

 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 

p
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
o
n
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

8
%

1
2
.5

%
9
.7

%
1
1
.3

%
6
.8

%
7
.9

%

8
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
0
th

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
; 
1
 x

 C
A

M
H

S
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r,

 2
 x

 F
o
s
te

ri
n
g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r,

 1
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r,

 1
 S

e
n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r,

 1
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
&

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
S

o
c
ia

l 

W
o
rk

e
r,

 2
 x

 F
a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 W
o
rk

e
rs

. 
C

A
M

H
S

 a
n
d
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
&

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 t
o
, 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
ie

s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 r

o
le

. 
F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

W
o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 S

e
n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

ro
le

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 p
la

n
s
 t
o
 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
e
 t
h
e
 F

o
s
te

ri
n
g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 s

h
o
rt

ly
. 

6
0
1
3
S

C
/ 
D

IS
 3

1
2
0
: 
%

 o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 l
o
s
t 
to

 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
in

.y
e
a
r 

fo
r 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 &

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
.

5
.5

%
5
.5

6
%

5
.1

%
3
.7

5
%

4
%

3
.7

4
%

%
 o

f 
d
a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 l
o
s
t 
e
q
u
a
te

s
 t
o
 1

3
4
6
.1

7
 d

a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
5
4
%

 o
f 
th

is
 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 (

th
re

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
re

ti
re

m
e
n
t 
c
a
s
e
s
),

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 

o
v
e
r 

4
 w

e
e
k
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

. 
1
7
%

 r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
o
v
e
r 

1
 w

e
e
k
 b

u
t 
le

s
s
 t
h
a
n
 4

 w
e
e
k
s
. 
A

n
d
 2

9
%

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
, 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 5

 d
a
y
s
 (

o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 7

%
 o

f 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 

1
 d

a
y
) 

O
f 
th

e
 1

3
4
6
.1

7
 d

a
y
s
, 
4
9
%

 r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 S

tr
e
s
s
 &

 a
n
x
ie

ty
, 
fo

llo
w

e
d
 b

y
 V

ir
a
l 
In

fe
c
ti
o
n
s
  
(1

6
%

).
 

O
th

e
r 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 H

e
a
d
a
c
h
e
s
, 
b
a
c
k
, 
S

to
m

a
c
h
, 
c
h
e
s
t 
&

 r
e
s
p
ir
a
to

ry
, 
p
o
s
t 
o
p
 e

tc
 

�

6
0
1
4
S

C
:

D
o
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 

w
it
h
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 
ri
s
k
s
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

.

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 i
s
 g

o
o
d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
in

g
 t
o
 

th
e
 C

A
M

H
S

 a
n
d
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
&

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
s
. 
A

t 
th

e
 m

o
m

e
n
t 
w

e
 a

re
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

w
it
h
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

e
rs

. 
D

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 o

n
 h

o
w

 w
e
 m

a
y
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 t
h

e

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
b
a
s
is

.

N
/A

6
0
1
5
S

C
/D

IS
3
1
2
1
:
%

 o
f 
S

S
D

 g
ro

s
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 s

p
e
n
t 
o
n
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 s

ta
ff
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

3
%

3
.6

%
3
.5

%
3
.1

0
%

3
.5

%
N

o
 D

a
ta

F
ir
s
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

d
a
ta

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

- 
d
a
ta

 s
h
o
u
ld

 h
o
p
e
fu

lly
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 o

n
w

a
rd

s

5
6
 o

f 
5
8



S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
n

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 c

o
d

e
s

0
5
/0

6

O
u

tt
u

rn

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r

d
a
ta

 A
v
. 
0
5
/0

6

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

r

d
a
ta

 0
5
/0

6

0
6
/0

7
 O

u
tt

u
rn

0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

0
7
/0

8
 O

u
tt

u
rn

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

/P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
A

G
 v

 

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

6
0
1
6
S

C
/D

IS
 3

1
2
3
: 
T

h
e
 %

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
h
ild

 c
a
re

 w
o
rk

e
rs

 

w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N

V
Q

 'C
a
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

'.

0
%

5
0
.3

%
6
1
.8

0
%

0
%

0
%

T
h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 w
it
h
in

 H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e

N
/A

6
0
1
7
S

C
/D

IS
 3

1
2
4
: 
T

h
e
 %

 o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 w
h
o
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 o

b
ta

in
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 c
a
re

 P
Q

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 P

Q
1
 a

w
a
rd

.

2
2
%

3
7
.1

%
4
3
%

5
8
%

N
/A

N
o
 D

a
ta

P
Q

1
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
o
n
 U

n
it
 o

f 
th

e
 P

.Q
 S

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
A

w
a
rd

. 
In

ta
k
e
 t
o
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

n
c
e
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 T
h
e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
N

e
w

ly
 

Q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 w
ill

 p
re

p
a
re

 t
h
e
m

 f
o
r 

e
n
tr

y
 t
o
 t
h
is

.

6
0
4
3
S

C
/D

IS
 3

1
2
5
: 
T

h
e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 %

 o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
ta

ff
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 w

h
o
 a

re
 s

k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
r 

a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 V

C
I 
a
u
d
it
.

1
0
0
%

9
4
.3

%
9
4
.9

%
1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

N
o
 D

a
ta

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 I
.e

. 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 

d
e
g
re

e
 &

 G
S

C
C

 r
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
.

6
0
0
5
S

C
/K

IG
S

 B
U

0
1
: 
P

S
S

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 

p
e
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8
.

£
2
9
5

£
4
6
8
.9

£
3
0
1
.1

£
3
2
1

£
3
1
3

N
o
 D

a
ta

A
n
n
u
a
l 
d
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

6
0
0
3
S

C
/K

IG
S

 B
U

0
7
: 
T

o
ta

l 
P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

P
S

S
) 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
.

£
2
6
7

£
3
5
6
.7

£
2
9
4

£
2
8
0

£
2
8
7

N
o
 D

a
ta

A
n
n
u
a
l 
d
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

6
0
0
4
S

C
/K

IG
S

 E
X

1
2
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
P

S
S

 a
c
tu

a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
.

1
8
.4

%
2
5
.6

%
1
9
.6

%
2
0
.5

9
%

2
2
.7

%
N

o
 D

a
ta

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

p
lit

 f
ro

m
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 s

e
t 
u
p
 a

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
o
l 
- 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 s

p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 d
a
ta

 t
o
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
. 
 F

ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

6
0
0
6
S

C
/K

IG
S

 E
X

6
1
: 
G

ro
s
s
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 p

e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 a

g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
6
.

£
3
0
1

£
2
8
5
.3

£
3
2
8

£
3
5
6

£
3
1
9

N
o
 D

a
ta

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

p
lit

 f
ro

m
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 s

e
t 
u
p
 a

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
o
l 
- 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 s

p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 d
a
ta

 t
o
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
. 
 F

ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

6
0
4
5
S

C
/K

IG
S

 E
X

6
6
: 
G

ro
s
s
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 a

g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8
.

£
1
9

£
1
7
.7

£
9
.7

£
1
1

£
2
0

N
o
 D

a
ta

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

p
lit

 f
ro

m
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 s

e
t 
u
p
 a

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
o
l 
- 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 s

p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 d
a
ta

 t
o
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
. 
 F

ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

6
0
0
9
S

C
/K

IG
S

 E
X

 7
7
/H

C
S

2
9
: 
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 f
a
m

ily
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 a

g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8
.

£
2
7

£
7
0

£
4
6
.5

£
3
5

£
2
9

N
o
 D

a
ta

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

p
lit

 f
ro

m
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 s

e
t 
u
p
 a

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
o
l 
- 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 s

p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 d
a
ta

 t
o
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
. 
 F

ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

6
0
2
2
S

C
/K

IG
S

 E
X

 6
2
: 
G

ro
s
s
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

p
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 a

g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8
.

£
2
2
0
.8

£
1
3
3
.5

£
1
6
4

N
o
 D

a
ta

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

p
lit

 f
ro

m
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 s

e
t 
u
p
 a

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
o
l 
- 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 s

p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 d
a
ta

 t
o
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
. 
 F

ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

6
0
2
0
S

C
/K

IG
S

 S
T

0
3
: 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
(S

S
D

) 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

in
g
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
's

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(W
T

E
s
) 

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 0

-1
7
.

2
9
.1

2
6
.8

2
3
.7

2
7
.3

9
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 r

a
te

.
�

6
0
2
1
S

C
/K

IG
S

 S
T

1
2
: 

S
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 (

W
T

E
s
) 

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 

0
-1

7
.

1
7
.7

1
4
.8

1
5
.4

1
6
.8

9
B

e
tt
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 T

M
s

�

5
7
 o

f 
5
8



O
ff

ic
e
 f

o
r 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
s

L
a
b

o
u

r

fo
rc

e
 d

a
ta

 

fo
r 

a
g

e
s
 1

8
-

2
4
 i
n

 

H
e
re

fo
rd

.

In
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t,
 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

 (
E

E
T

)

T
o

ta
l

%
 i
n

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

 (
E

E
T

)

2
0
0
3

1
0
,4

4
2

1
1
,9

6
8

8
7
%

2
0
0
4

7
7
5
1

8
8
6
3

8
7
%

2
0
0
5

9
0
7
4

1
1
,3

6
9

7
9
%

H
e
re

fo
rd

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 -
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
8
 -

 O
ff

ic
e
 f

o
r 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
S

ta
ti

s
ti

c
s
.

T
o

ta
l 
o

f 
u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

T
o

ta
l

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
w

h
o

 

a
re

 u
n

d
e
r 

1
8

M
id

y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
3
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 f
ig

u
re

s
3
7
,8

5
9

1
7
6
,9

1
2

2
1
%

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

p
o

p
u
la

ti
o
n
 m

id
-2

0
0
5
 

3
7
,2

1
5

1
7
8
,7

6
3

2
1
%

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e
rs

o
n

s
 a

g
e
d

 1
0
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e
r 

1
8
 

c
a
u

ti
o

n
e
d

 o
r 

c
o

n
v
ic

te
d

 o
f 

a
ll
 o

ff
e
n

c
e
s
 a

s
 a

 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
 

g
ro

u
p

, 
W

e
s
t 

M
e
rc

ia
 r

e
g

io
n

.

P
e
rs

o
n

s

c
a
u

ti
o

n
e
d

P
e
rs

o
n

s

c
o

n
v
ic

te
d

P
e
rs

o
n

s

c
o

n
v
ic

te
d

 o
r 

c
a
u

ti
o

n
e
d

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

a
g

e
d

 1
0
-1

7
, 

m
id

 2
0
0
4

P
e
rs

o
n

s

c
o

n
v
ic

te
d

 o
r 

c
a
u

ti
o

n
e
d

 a
s
 a

 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 

th
e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

(%
)

2
0
0
4

4
7
4
9

1
2
4
,3

8
7

4
%

2
0
0
5

3
2
0
2

2
0
2
0

5
2
2
2

1
2
4
,3

6
1

4
.2

0
%

B
a
c
k
 t
o
 C

o
n
te

n
ts

 p
a
g
e

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 s
ta

ti
s
ti

c
s
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 2

0
0
3
-2

0
0
5

S
ta

ti
s

ti
c

a
l 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rs

 f
o

r 

H
e

re
fo

rd
s

h
ir

e
:

S
o

m
e
rs

e
t

D
e
v
o

n

S
h

ro
p

s
h

ir
e

C
o

rn
w

a
ll

S
u

ff
o

lk

N
o

rf
o

lk

W
il
ts

h
ir

e

D
o

rs
e
t

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

E
a
s
t 

S
u

s
s
e
x

5
8

 o
f 

5
8



        CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 5 OCTOBER 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from D. Longmore, Manager of School Inclusion, tel 
01432 260816 

 

 
BehaviourandDisciplinereport0.doc  

 REVIEW OF BEHAVIOUR AND DISCIPLINE 
MANAGEMENT IN HEREFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS 

Report By: Director of Children’s Services 

 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To inform the Committee of the Cabinet Member’s acceptance of the recommendations 
in the Scrutiny review report and to consider the resultant action plan. 

Financial Implications 

2. The recommendations contained in the original report had some potential financial 
implications although this would be expected to be contained within current budget. 

Background 

3. Following a Scrutiny review of behaviour and discipline management in Herefordshire 
schools, a report was considered and accepted by the Children’s Services Scrutiny 
Committee on 19th March 2007.  The report was considered by the Cabinet Member 
(Children’s Services) and an action plan was then developed and agreed with the 
Cabinet Member (Children’s Services).  The action plan, attached at appendix 1, 
contains activities to be carried out by the Cabinet Member and Council officers as 
appropriate. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT The committee accept and support the action plan. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

AGENDA ITEM 10

17



18



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 D

is
c

ip
li

n
e

 i
n

 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 S
c

h
o

o
ls

. 
 R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n
 

(f
ig

s
 i
n
 b

ra
c
k
e
ts

 
re

fe
rs

 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

p
o
rt

) 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

C
a

b
in

e
t/

C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 

A
c
ti
o

n
  

B
y
 W

h
o

 
B

y
 W

h
e

n
 

T
a

rg
e

t/
S

u
c
c
e

s
s
 

c
ri
te

ri
a

 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

7
.1

 
T

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

 s
ta

ff
 

q
u

e
s

ti
o

n
n

a
ir

e
 

b
e

 u
s

e
d

 t
o

 f
o

rm
 

th
e

 b
a

s
e

li
n

e
 f

o
r 

s
im

il
a

r 
s

tu
d

ie
s

 
to

 b
e

 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 i
n

 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 (

s
e

e
 

p
a

ra
. 

3
.1

) 

A
g
re

ed
 

T
o
 c

ir
cu

la
te

 a
 

si
m

il
ar

 

q
u
es

ti
o
n
n
ai

re
 

to
 s

ch
o
o
l 

st
af

f 

in
 2

0
0

8
 

 A
n
al

y
se

 

re
su

lt
s 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

(D
en

n
is

 

L
o
n
g
m

o
re

) 

   L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

D
ec

em
b
er

 

2
0
0
8

 

    A
p
ri

l 

2
0
0
9

 

Q
u
es

ti
o
n

n
ai

re
 

d
ev

el
o
p
ed

, 

ci
rc

u
la

te
d

 a
n
d
 

re
tu

rn
ed

 

  S
u
m

m
ar

y
  
o
f 

re
su

lt
s 

p
re

se
n
te

d
 

to
 S

cr
u
ti

n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it

te
e 

A
p
ri

l 

2
0
0
8
 

N
o
te

d
 f

o
r 

ac
ti

o
n
 

7
.2

 
T

h
a

t 
a

n
 a

u
d

it
 b

e
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
s

it
iv

e
 

p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 

c
o

u
rs

e
s

 
c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 a
c

ro
s

s
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 (
m

u
lt

i 
a

g
e

n
c

y
),

 a
n

d
 i

f 
n

e
c

e
s

s
a

ry
, 

th
e

 

A
g
re

ed
 

C
ar

ry
 o

u
t 

au
d
it

 

o
f 

p
ar

en
ti

n
g
 

co
u
rs

es
 

   M
ar

k
et

in
g
 o

f 

p
ar

en
ti

n
g
 

co
u
rs

es
 t

o
 b

e 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 i

n
 t

h
e 

P
ar

en
ti

n
g
 

R
ic

h
ar

d
 

W
at

so
n
 

    R
ic

h
ar

d
 

W
at

so
n
 

D
ec

em
b
er

 

2
0
0
7

 

    A
p
ri

l 

2
0
0
8

 

P
ro

d
u
ct

io
n
 o

f 

w
ri

tt
en

 s
u
m

m
ar

y
 

&
 r

es
u
lt

s 

co
n
si

d
er

ed
 b

y
 

D
ir

ec
to

r/
C

ab
in

et
 

M
em

b
er

 

P
ar

en
ti

n
g
 

S
tr

at
eg

y
 

p
ro

d
u
ce

d
 

O
n
 t

ra
ck

 

     O
n
 t

ra
ck

 

19



p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

a
b

o
u

t 
s

u
c

h
 

c
o

u
rs

e
s

 b
e

 
in

c
re

a
s

e
d

. 
(s

e
e

 
p

a
ra

. 
3

.6
) 

S
tr

at
eg

y
 

7
.3

 
A

 D
ir

e
c

to
ry

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
 

c
o

m
p

il
e

d
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 
b

o
th

 p
a

re
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 

p
ro

fe
s

s
io

n
a

ls
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 p
u

p
il

 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

in
 

s
c

h
o

o
ls

; 
(s

e
e

 
p

a
ra

. 
3

.8
) 

A
g
re

ed
 

T
o
 a

u
d
it

 a
n
d
 

li
st

 a
ll

 s
u
ch

 

se
rv

ic
es

 

 P
u
b
li

sh
 t

h
e 

in
fo

 (
o

n
 

w
eb

si
te

) 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

   L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

w
it

h
 I

C
T

 

Ju
ly

 2
0
0
8
 

   Ju
ly

 2
0
0
8
 

D
ir

ec
to

ry
 

av
ai

la
b
le

 (
ei

th
er

 

h
ar

d
 c

o
p

y
 o

r 

el
ec

tr
o
n
ic

) 

 

N
o
te

d
 f

o
r 

ac
ti

o
n
 

7
.4

 
L

e
a

fl
e

ts
 

in
fo

rm
in

g
 

p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
fe

s
s

io
n

a
ls

 o
f 

k
e

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 
u

p
d

a
te

d
 w

h
e

re
 

n
e

c
e

s
s

a
ry

; 
(s

e
e

 
p

a
ra

. 
3

.8
) 

 

A
g
re

ed
 

L
ea

fl
et

s 
to

 b
e 

d
es

ig
n

ed
, 

p
ro

d
u

ce
d
 a

n
d
 

ci
rc

u
la

te
d
 

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

Ju
ly

 2
0
0
8
 

L
ea

fl
et

s 

av
ai

la
b
le

 

N
o
te

d
 f

o
r 

ac
ti

o
n
 

20



7
.5

 
T

h
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

(C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

) 
c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 
m

e
ri

t 
in

 
d

is
c

u
s

s
in

g
 w

it
h

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

s
c

h
o

o
ls

 t
h

e
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 U

n
it

s
 

(L
S

U
s

) 
in

 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
n

ty
; 

(s
e

e
 

p
a

ra
. 

3
.1

0
) 

A
g
re

ed
 

M
ee

ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 

C
ab

in
et

 

M
em

b
er

 a
n
d
 

k
ey

 s
ta

ff
 t

o
 

d
is

cu
ss

 t
h
e 

is
su

e 
o
f 

L
S

U
s 

 C
ab

in
et

 

M
em

b
er

 t
o
 

v
is

it
 s

ch
o
o
ls

  
 

C
ab

in
et

 

M
em

b
er

 

     C
ab

in
et

 

M
em

b
er

 

O
ct

 0
7
  

 Ju
ly

 2
0
0
8
 

 M
ee

ti
n
g
 h

el
d
 

     V
is

it
s 

co
m

p
le

te
d
 

N
o
te

d
 f

o
r 

ac
ti

o
n
 

7
.6

 
T

h
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

(C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

) 
s

a
ti

s
fi

e
s

 h
e

rs
e

lf
 

th
a

t 
p

ro
c

e
d

u
re

 
fo

r 
th

e
 e

a
rl

y
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

m
o

d
e

ra
te

 
le

a
rn

in
g

 
d

if
fi

c
u

lt
ie

s
 i

s
 

ri
g

o
ro

u
s

ly
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

; 
(s

e
e

 p
a

ra
. 

3
.1

1
) 

A
g
re

ed
 

C
ab

in
et

 

M
em

b
er

 t
o
 

m
ee

t 
w

it
h
 

re
le

v
an

t 
L

A
 

st
af

f 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 

al
re

ad
y
 i

n
 

p
la

ce
 

 V
is

it
 a

 s
am

p
le

 

o
f 

sc
h

o
o
ls

 (
if

 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
) 

C
ab

in
et

 

M
em

b
er

 

       C
ab

in
et

 

M
em

b
er

 

 O
ct

 0
7
  

   Ju
ly

 2
0
0
8
 

M
ee

ti
n
g
 

co
n
v
en

ed
 

    If
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 

v
is

it
s 

u
n
d

er
ta

k
en

 

&
 

fi
n
d
in

g
s/

ac
ti

o
n
 

re
p
o
rt

ed
 t

o
 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y
 

  

N
o
te

d
 f

o
r 

ac
ti

o
n
 

21



 
7

.7
 

W
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 

e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 i

s
 

b
ro

u
g

h
t 

in
to

 
fo

rc
e

 t
h

e
 

c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
c

e
 

to
 p

a
re

n
ts

 o
f 

e
x

c
lu

d
e

d
 p

u
p

il
s

 
b

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 t
o

 
re

fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 n
e

w
 

le
g

a
l 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
p

e
n

a
lt

ie
s

 o
f 

n
o

t 
s

u
p

e
rv

is
in

g
 

th
e

ir
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 

w
h

e
n

 e
x

c
lu

d
e

d
. 

 
S

u
c

h
 

c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
c

e
 

to
 b

e
 w

h
e

re
 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 i
n

 p
la

in
 

E
n

g
li

s
h

; 
(s

e
e

 
p

a
ra

. 
3

.1
2

) 

A
g
re

ed
 

T
o
 c

ir
cu

la
te

 

n
ew

 e
x

cl
u
si

o
n
 

m
o
d
el

 l
et

te
rs

 

(f
ro

m
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 

to
 p

ar
en

ts
) 

re
fl

ec
ti

n
g
 t

h
e 

ch
an

g
es

 

  T
o
 c

o
n
si

d
er

 a
n

 

ar
ti

cl
e 

in
 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 

H
er

ef
o
rd

sh
ir

e 

M
at

te
rs

 

h
ig

h
li

g
h
ti

n
g
 

th
e 

n
ew

 

re
sp

o
n

si
b
il

it
ie

s  

L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

        L
ea

d
 O

ff
ic

er
 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 

2
0
0
7

 

       S
ep

t 
0
7
 

N
ew

 m
o
d

el
 

le
tt

er
s 

in
 u

se
 b

y
 

sc
h
o
o
ls

 

      A
rt

ic
le

 p
u
b
li

sh
ed

 

O
n
 t

ra
ck

 -
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n
 

b
ei

n
g
 p

re
p
ar

ed
 

fo
r 

sc
h

o
o
ls

 s
o
 

m
o
d
el

 l
et

te
rs

 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
b
le

 i
n
 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 

2
0
0
7
 

 O
n
 t

ra
ck

  

7
.8

 
A

 r
e

v
ie

w
 b

e
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i

n
to

 
th

e
 l

e
v
e

l 
o

f 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

h
e

a
lt

h
y
 e

a
ti

n
g

 

A
g
re

ed
 

A
 b

ri
ef

 r
ep

o
rt

 

to
 b

e 

co
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 

H
ea

lt
h

y
 

S
ch

o
o

ls
 

T
es

s 
B

o
y
es

 

(H
ea

lt
h
y
 

S
ch

o
o

ls
) 

  

D
ec

em
b
er

 

2
0
0
7

 

   

R
ep

o
rt

 

co
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

b
le

 

fo
r 

th
e 

S
cr

u
ti

n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it

te
e 

N
o
te

d
 f

o
r 

ac
ti

o
n
 

   

22



in
it

ia
ti

v
e

s
 f

ro
m

 
b

o
th

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 

T
ru

s
t 

(P
C

T
),

 i
n

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

to
 

a
p

p
la

u
d

 t
h

o
s

e
 

s
c

h
o

o
ls

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

d
 

th
e

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

S
ta

tu
s

 a
n

d
 t

o
 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

e
 

re
s

t 
to

 d
o

 s
o

; 
(s

e
e

 p
a

ra
. 

3
.1

3
) 

    C
ab

in
et

 

M
em

b
er

 t
o
 

w
ri

te
 t

o
 

H
ea

lt
h

y
 

S
ch

o
o

ls
 

ac
k
n
o

w
le

d
g
in

g
 

th
ei

r 
g
o
o
d
 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 t

h
is

 

ar
ea

 

     C
ab

in
et

 

M
em

b
er

 

    O
ct

 0
7
  

    L
et

te
r 

se
n

t 

    L
et

te
r 

b
ei

n
g
 

d
ra

ft
ed

 

A
d

d
e

d
 b

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

T
h

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 b

e
 

d
ra

w
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 d

u
ty

 
o

f 
c

a
re

’ 
to

 i
ts

 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s

. 

N
o
te

d
 b

y
 C

ab
in

et
 

M
em

b
er

 

C
ab

in
et

 

m
em

b
er

 t
o
 

co
n
si

d
er

 

m
ee

ti
n

g
 H

R
 

O
ff

ic
er

 (
N

ic
k
 

A
u
st

in
) 

 

 

C
ab

in
et

 

M
em

b
er

 

O
ct

o
b
er

 

2
0
0
7

 

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

b
er

 

to
 f

ee
l 

fu
ll

y
 

in
fo

rm
ed

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’
s 

d
u
ty

 

o
f 

ca
re

 

O
n
 t

ra
ck

 

 

23



24



CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 5TH OCTOBER 2006 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Paul James,  
Democratic services Officer on 01432 260460 

 
WorkprogrammeatOct07report0.doc  

 CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME 

Report By: Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1 To consider the Committee work programme. 

Financial Implications 

2 None  

Background 

3 In accordance with the Scrutiny Improvement Plan a report on the Committee’s 
current Work Programme will be made to each of the scheduled quarterly meetings 
of this Scrutiny Committee.  A copy of the suggested Work Programme is attached at 
appendix 1. 

4 The programme may be modified by the Chairman following consultation with the 
Vice-Chairman and the Director of Children’s Services in response to changing 
circumstances.  

5 Appendix 2 monitors progress against recommendations made by the Committee 
where action is ongoing or outstanding.  The list does not include all the issues 
considered by the Committee rather the instances where the Committee has 
requested that specific action be taken and the response to that request.  Nor does it 
include requests made by the Committee for reports, which are covered as part of the 
compilation of the work programme. 

6 Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issue arise, the Chairman may consider 
calling an additional meeting to consider that issue. 

7 Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the 
scrutiny programme they should contact either the Director of Children’s Services or 
the Democratic Services Officer to log the issue so that it may be taken in to 
consideration when planning future agendas or when revising the work programme. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT subject to any comment or issues raised by the Committee the 
Committee work programme be approved and reported to 
Strategic Monitoring Committee. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 11

25



26



WorkProgrammeChildrensServicdesatOct07Appendix10.doc 

Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2007/08 
APPENDIX 1 

 
 

14th  December 2007 

Officer Reports • Presentation by Cabinet Member (Children’s 
Services) 

• Youth Services 

• Principles on future provision of School places – 
update. 

• Capital Budget Monitoring. 

• Revenue Budget Monitoring 

• Performance Digest 

• Committee Work Programme. 

Scrutiny Reviews  

21st April 2008 

Officer Reports • Principles on future provision of School places – 
update. 

• Capital Budget Monitoring. 

• Revenue Budget Monitoring 

• Performance Digest 

• Committee Work Programme. 

Scrutiny Reviews  

 

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman are discussing with the Director of Children’s 
Services possible future items on Extended Schools and Early Years Provision. 
 
The Director of Children’s Services is discussing with the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman the possible introduction of occasional informal information seminars for 
committee members based on defined themes. 
 
Note: the “Principles on future provision of School places issue is also listed for 
possible consideration by Strategic Monitoring Committee. 
 

27



28



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 

 
D

a
te

 
Is

s
u

e
 a

n
d

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 
R

e
s
u

lt
a
n

t 
a
c
ti

o
n

 o
r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
 

1
9
/3

/0
7
 

B
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 

D
is

c
ip

lin
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

in
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

b
) 

th
e
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
’s

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

a
v
a
il

a
b

le
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

 
o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

h
a
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 i
ts

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
; 

a
n

d
 

c
) 

a
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

re
p

o
rt

 
o

n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

in
 

re
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 

th
e
n

 
b

e
 

m
a
d

e
 

a
ft

e
r 

s
ix

 
m

o
n

th
s
 

w
it

h
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 t

h
e
n

 b
e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
a
n

y
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
p

o
rt

s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
. 

T
h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
, 

is
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
g

e
n
d
a
. 

2
5
/6

/0
7
 

J
o
in

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
: 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 L
e
a
v
in

g
 C

a
re

 t
o
 A

d
u
lt
 L

if
e
 

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

: 
 

T
h

a
t 

(a
) 

th
e
 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 
n

o
te

d
 
th

e
 
w

o
rk

 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 
s
o

 
fa

r 
a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
T

ra
n

s
it

io
n

 
fr

o
m

 L
e
a
v
in

g
 C

a
re

 t
o

 A
d

u
lt

 L
if

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
 

le
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
o

f 
th

e
 
A

d
u

lt
 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
a
n

d
 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
; 

a
n

d
  

(b
) 

th
e
 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
 

o
n

 
th

e
 

re
v
ie

w
 

fr
o

m
 

th
is

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

b
e
 

M
rs

 
D

. 
S

tr
u

tt
 

(H
e
a
d

te
a
c
h

e
r)

 
C

o
u

n
c
il

lo
r 

G
 

L
u

c
a
s
 

a
n

d
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

M
rs

 
J
 

E
 

P
e
m

b
e
rt

o
n

 (
n

o
m

in
a
te

d
 t

o
 C

h
a
ir

 t
h

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
).

 
 

T
h
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 G

ro
u
p
, 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 C

h
a
ir
m

a
n
s
h
ip

 o
f 

C
llr

 J
E

 
P

e
m

b
e
rt

o
n
, 

h
a
s
 m

e
t 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
. 

 A
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

th
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 &
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

29



D
a
te

 
Is

s
u

e
 a

n
d

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 
R

e
s
u

lt
a
n

t 
a
c
ti

o
n

 o
r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
 

2
5
/6

/0
7
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 

a
n
d
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

: 
 

T
h

a
t 

 
(a

) 
 

th
e
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
-o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
(D

io
c
e
s
a
n

 
a
n

d
 

P
a
re

n
t 

G
o

v
e
rn

o
rs

) 
b

e
 

n
o

te
d

; 
(b

) 
o

n
e
 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

b
e
 

c
o

-o
p

te
d

 
fr

o
m

 
T

h
e
 

A
ll

ia
n

c
e
 

(r
e
p

re
s
e
n

ti
n

g
 

th
e
 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 
a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

s
e
c
to

r)
 
a
n

d
 
o

n
e
 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
 
fr

o
m

 
th

e
 
F

o
s
te

r 
C

a
re

 s
e
c
to

r;
 

(c
) 

th
e
 
H

e
a
d

 
o

f 
L

e
g

a
l 

a
n

d
 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 
in

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 

C
h

a
ir

m
a
n

 
a
n

d
 

V
ic

e
-

C
h

a
ir

m
a
n

 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
 

th
e
 

c
o

-o
p

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

s
e
c
to

rs
. 

 

B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 J

u
n
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
m

a
n
 

a
n
d
 V

ic
e
-C

h
a
ir
m

a
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

. 
T

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
-o

p
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
  

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
L
e
g

a
l 
a
n
d
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
ta

c
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 b

o
d
ie

s
 t

o
 p

u
t 

th
is

 
in

to
 e

ff
e
c
t.

 

2
5
/6

/0
7
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 W

o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

: 
T

h
a
t 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

th
e
 

C
h

a
ir

m
a
n

 
a
n

d
 

V
ic

e
-C

h
a
ir

m
a
n

 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
. 

 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 o

n
 g

o
in

g
. 

 

30


	Agenda
	
	6 Principles on future provision of schol places
	051007 Principles of Provision of School Places Appendix 1.ps

	Additional Paper - Principles to Guide the Provision....
	7 Capital Budget Monitoring Report 2007/08
	Capital Budget Monitoring Appendix 1

	8 Revenue Budget MonitoringReport 2007/08
	Additional paper - Revenue Budget....
	9 Performance Digest - Quarter 1 - 2007/2008
	The Quarterly Digest referred to in Item 9
	10 Review of Behaviour and Discipline Management in Herefordshire Schools
	Behaviour and Discipline Action Plan

	11 Committee Work Programme
	Work Programme Childrens Servicdes at Oct 07 Appendix 1
	Work Programme Summary of actions Appendix 2


